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4. All other claims, facts, and allegations in this Application are realleged and incorporated
Ib].-' reference in this proposition, as well as the inforrnation in the Appendix, Addenda, and
information to be produced at an evidentiary hearing on this Application. Related elavms raised in
Mr Cummings' pending dircet appeal are also rezlleged and incarporated by reference (see, e.g,,
App. Brcef, Propositions 2 & 5).

5. The evidence of Mr. Cummings” innocence set forth in this Application (see, e.g.
Averment of Facts, above) is sufficiently strong to destroy confidence in the outeame of his tmal, It
is more likely than not a reasonable juror hearing all of the now available evidence would not vate to
convict Mr. Commings bevond a reasonable doubt,

6. There is newly discoverad evidence and'or evidence not previously available of Mr,
Cummings’ innocence of this offenses. This new evidence matenally impeaches Anira’s and
Shermy's false claims Mr. Cummings was in invalved in this offense. As a result of this newly
discovered evidence, it iz not possible to have confidence in the réliabiliry of the cutcome of Mr.
Cummings' tmal.

7. There is evidence showing that M. Cummings' July 30, 1994 confession 1o asssting m
moving Judy’s body was a false confession made due to inducements by a law enforcement afficer.
Thers now is evidence available 1o substantiate Mr, Cummings® reasons for falsely confessing in
arder to protect his children from living with child molesters (see Averment of Facts, Pans M & F,
above),

8. There is also new evidence to impeach the prosecution’s theory at trizl that Ania and
Sherry Cummings were abused spouses who were dominated and controlled by Mr, Cummings (see,
e.g., Averment of Facts, Parts C, F & G, above), and to show that theory shauld never even have
gone to the jury. Trial counsel was not given sufficient notice that the prosecution would rely at trial
on a Battered Waman Syndrome theory. As a result, trial counsel did not have a reasonable

opportmity to: request that Sherry and Anita submit to psychological lesting; request the praduction
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of Sherry and Anita's medical and psychological records; consult with an expert in Battered Woman
Syndrame [BWS] and present testimany of such an expert which wauld have impeached the
women's attempts ta poroay themselves as victims of BWS who had become so fearful and heipless
that they had no choice But to carry out any command of Mr. Cummings, including a command to
kill. (See, e.g.. Affidavits of Dr. Ray Hand, Ph.D. (Appendix 5 & &), and Averment of Facts, Part C,
uf?r:vs':l-

9 There now is evidence that Mr. Cummings is limited inteflecrually and eogaitively, and
lacks sophisticated planning skills to be able to plan out these offenses and conceal them for three
vears (sec, e.p., Appendix 51, This evidence also shaws that Mr. Curnmings Jacks the psychalogical
makeup to daminate and contre! Anita and Sherry Cummings (see, ¢.g., Appendix 5}, the evidence at
trial reparding Anita and Sherry is insufficient ta support the prosecution’s theory they are victims of
Barered Women Syndrom {2ee, £.g., Avermani of Facts, Part C, , above, and Appendix §), and
evidence Anita and Sherrv were not battered spouses (see, e.g- Averment of Facts, Parts F & G,
above).

10, The new evidence includes evidence of the cultural narms, mores and interpersanal
dvnamics of the Poor White Trash subeulmure in which Mr. Cummings and his wives were raised,
socialized and lived. (See, e.g., Affidavit of Dr. Wayne Flynt, Fi.D. (Appendix 4), and Averment of
Facts, Part B, above). Defense counsel did not consult with an expert on the Poor White Trash
subculture becanse counsel ware unaware of the existence of such experts, and were unaware the
pavehological, behavior and interpersonal dynamics i that culture are materially different from the
culture of paor whites, lower class and middle class persons. Hence, it was nol unreasonable for
defense counsel 1o fail to investigate this information, and this information was nat previously
available.

11. There now exists evidence of prosecutarial misconduct in suppressing material evidence
and /or presenting evidence at trial in a false light (ree Proposifion 3).

12. The record previously did not contain evidence that trial counsel were ineff ective in

comceding Mr. Commings’ guilt to Accessory After the Fact under circumstances in which Mr,
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Cummings had never made that admission to defenss counsel, and in fact consistently denied daing

that, and trial counse] conceded guilt without Mr, Cummings’ in formed consent (see Propesiion 2);
and evidence that explains why Mr. Curmmings' falsely confessed to moving Judy's de}’ (zee
Averment of Facts, Part L, abeve), which confession he recanted shonly afier making it

13. The record previously did not contain evidance regarding the circumstances in which
Ani}a Cummings decided 1o go to the palice three years after the offenses, and the inconsistencics in
her initiz] versions of the offenses with her preliminary headng 2nd trial testimony {see, e.2.,
Averment of Facts, Parts K & L, and Appendix 11, 16 - 19].

4. There is now cvidence that Sherry and Anita Comemings commaitted perury at Mr.
Cummings” trial (see. e.g., Averment of Facts, Pans F & 4, ahave], This includes informartion
provided to the undersigned by Sherry about Anita’ testimaony.

15. There iz now other substantial and material evidence to impeach Anila's and Shermy's
versions of events, including information about Meiissa which renders improbable and meredible
their claims that Melissa passively and without resistence or complaim allowed herself 1o be kept
captive in a bedroom far 10-12 hours, during much of which she was allegedly handeuffed, and
without ever asking about her mother (see Averment of Facts, Pant D, above],

16. There now is substantial evidence that Lahoma Yaws I's allegation that Mr. Cummings
had raped her at age 14 is insufficiently relizble for jurors to have been cxposed to that allegation
i.see. i.'g, Averment of Facts, Part H, above).

17. In the alternative, this case should be remanded ta the District Court for an evidentiary
hearing because there exists material issuss of fact and the pleadings and record before this Court is
insufficient to resnlve those factual issues. By way of example, the following izsues of material fact
require an evidentiary heanng:

5) Whether Anita Cumnmings lied under oath in stating that she did not know Jessie was
married to Sherry when Anita married him {T. 689) and did not Jeamn about his marriage to
Sherry until afier Anita and Jessie moved to Oklahoma (PH. 683), in light of Sherry’s post-
trial statements ta the undersigned counsel that Anita lied about that, coupled with the fact



fhat Amita was living with Sherry and Jessie when she married Jessie, and Sherry was present

during Anita and Jessie's marriage ceremony (Appendix T

b) Whether Anita Comimings lied to jurors in stating it Was not UNCOMmOLN forJessie 1o
handeuff the kids (T. 740), in light of Sherry’s Preliminary Hearing testimany that nene of
the kids had ever been handeuffed in the house before Melizsa was handcuffed dunng this
offense (P.H. 35).

¢} Whether Anita lied under oath in stating that she never had any disagreements ar
arguments with Judy prior to the murder (T. 621 & 726; P.H. 17), in light of evidence that
Anita was upset and angry with Judy the night befere this offense, because Judy had dropped
Melissa off at Anita’s place of employment and told Anita ta watch Melissa for her while she
went out drinking (see Anita's 12/2/94 statement 1o police in Appendix 17, see also

Appendix 7). .

d) Whether Anita Hed under aath in claiming she and Sherry did not have any friends who
visited them on a regular basis (P.H. 283) in light of abundant evidence that they had many

fricnds and acquaintances with whom they had frequent contacts [Appendix T;

e} Whether Anita and Sherry were Jominated and controlled by Jessie beyond that which is
narmal in martial relationships in their epcin-economic class and to such an extent that Anita
and Sherry would have committed this offense at his command in light of substantial
evidence that Sherry was a3 domineering and contralling 23 Jessie, could hold her own
against him in a fight, and does not meet the criteria for Batiered Women Syndrome

(Appendix 6 and 7).

f) Whether Sherry lied under oath in claiming that Jessie has hit her almost daily cver since
they have been together (P.H. 132} in light of Sherry’s post-trial admission that any abuse
that took place did not begin until years after they met znd a long time after their maroage m
1985 {Appendix 7).

) Whether Lahoma II lied under oath, and whether there was sufficient credible evidence Lo

ademit her testimony in the first place, when she testified at the sentencing hearing that Jessie
had raped her in April 1991 while her sister, Sherry Cummings, and Anita Cummings held

=K3-



her down, in light of substantial evidence that Lahoma IT has & reputation for Iying, coupled

with her own admission she has a habit of Iving, and evidence that many of her relatives and
acqguaimntances believe she was [ying about the rape, coupled with the tatal absence of
corroborating evidence such a rape took place {see Averment of Facts, Part H1,

h} Whether the women lied ahaut Judy's bady and her red pickup not being maved from
their house until after Jessie retumed from Oklahoma City afier midnight, in light of Ella
Faye Ponter's statements that she stopped by the Cummin 3" house looking for Judy around
8:00 prn 2nd found nabody home and Judy’s pickup gone (Appendix 35): coupled with
Lorera Wells McCullar's statements that she stopped by the Cummings’ house around 10-00
pr that night and found nobody home and Judy's pickup not there {Appendix 13).

1) Whether the women lied under oath about keeping Melissa alive and confined in their
small bedroom for over 10 houts, and in handeuffs during much of that tim e, without Melissa
complzining or protesting in any way or asking about her mother, in light of substantial
evidence that Melissa was an active chiid who would not tolerare being confined, and who
was @ mama’s gitl and would have been asking about her mother (Affidavit 7), coupled with
Anna’s claim that Sherry handeuffed Melissa and Skerry's claim that Anita handcuffed

Melizsa.

) Whether Sherry lied under cath ahout having a telephone conversation with Jessie
Cummings the evening of this affense when he call=d her from Oklahoma City at Stella
Knight's house, in light of Stella’s statements that na such phone call took piace that day
(Appendix 31, coupled with Stella Knight's phone records which show no collest calls were
made to her hame that day {id.).

k) Whether the wives lied about the circomstances ender which Anita shot Tudy to deatk in
light of Anita’s claim Sherry called her to the back parch and pave Anita the gun with
instructions to go shoot Judy, which s in dircet contradiction ta Sherry’s elaim that she was
on the toilet going to the bathroom when she was surprised by the sound of punshots and

then discovered Anita had shot Judy.

1) Whether the wives lied about Jessie having sexval intercourse with Melisss the night of
this offense in light of Shermy’s complete lack of knowledge that this suppasedly happened in
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confrast to Anita’s testimony that both she and Sherry wers present and watched it take

place, coupled with Sherry’s claim that Melissa and Jessie were joking around topether
immediately after the alleged rape took place, in light of substantial evidence that Melisaa
was & VIrgin, not yet menstruating, and would not have reacted 1o being raped‘in a joking

manner (Appendix 7; see afso T, 587).

m) Whether Anita and Sherry lied about how Amnita shot Judy in light of Anita’s testimony
that she stood in the same place about 7" from Judy and shot Judy wha was sitting on the
couch and immediately slumped sideways on the cauch, coupled with the Medical
Examiner’s finding that some of Judy gunshot wounds went from right to left and a1 Jeast
one other from 1efit to right, and some went epward while at least one went downwards, and
in light of the large abrasion on the back of Judy's right leg, indicaring that she was hit with
something or stamped an just before her death (Appendix 14).

n) Whether Sherry lied about Jessie taking Melissa off 1o an isolated arca and killing her
there in lipht of testimony that when this supposedly happened Melissa was dressed in shorts
and a T-shirt, but her body was found nude and no clothing was found in the vicinity, and in
light of the fact that Sherry was supposedly sitting in the car with the windows down not far
from where Mclissa supposedly was killad, but nonethelass tesrified that she did not hear

helissa cry out or any other unusual noise.

o) Whether Amta and Shermy were bisexuzl lovers and conspired to frame Jessie for this
offense, in light of the substantial evidence the wives were bisexual, were lovers, and had

motives to frame Jessie (Appendix 7).

p} Whether Amta and Shermy lied about what happened to the gun after Judv was shat in light
of Anita’s claims that she threw the gun on the bed immediately afier shooting Judy and
neVer saw in again, in contrast to Sherry’s claim that Anita put the gun on the T.V. and never

saw it again.

q} Whether Anita and Sherry lied about who was the person in charge of this offense and
hiding the fact that it took place, in light of Anita’s claims that Sherry forced the gun on her
and made her shoot Judy end then made her help move the body and clean up the ehme
scene, In contrast with Sherry's claim that she did not know Anita was peing to shoot Judy
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until afler Amita did it, and that Anitz was the one wheo forced her to help move the body znd
clean up the cnme seene, coupled with Sherry's claim that it was Anita’s idea to put the kids
mn the bedroom while they cleaned up and Anita was the one who put Melissa in the bedroor
in contrast with Anita’s claim that Sherry gave instructions on potting the kidz.in the
bedroom and that Eherry was the one who put Melissa in the bedroom.

r} Whether the women lied abaut when and how Judy’s and Melissa’s bodies were dispased
of in light af Anita's claims that she was mside the house and did not help laad Judy's body
into Judy’s pickup (T, 701 & 743) in contrast to Sherry’s claim and that both she and Anita
helped load Judy's body into the truck (T, 530,

s) Whether the women lied about disposing of the couch on which Tudy supposcdly was
sitting when she was shot in light of Anita’s cl2im that the couch was in the livingroom later
that night and the cushions were outside drying from having been washed, in contrast to
Sherry's testimany that she was sitting an the éouch watching T.V. that evening and also
Sherry's conflicting testimony that the eouch was autside later that night,

£) Whether the wives lied about not being free to leave Jessie and not having any OpportuRity
1o leave him in light of substantial evidence Jessie was often gone away from home warking
or hunting a day or more at a time under circumstances in which the wives had vehicles o
use, a checking account from which to access money, relatives to provide them a place ta

live, and friends to assist them.
u) Whether Timothy Chancellor had a mental disability that impaired the accuracy of his
trial testimony, and whether the prosecution failed to praduce 1o the defense impeachment

evidence relevant to Chancellor's credibility (see Propasition 2,

v) Whether the prosecution failed to produce to the defense material evidence relevant to

guilt or punishment in this caze in viclation of Srady v. Marplord {see Proposition 3).

w) Whether Mr. Curnings was denied the effective assistance of counsel in prior

proceedings (see Proposition 2).
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x) Whether Anita and Sherry lied about when and how they committed these murders in light

of the tatality of the conflict, inconsiatent and reliahle evidsnce in this case.

¥} Whether there was sufficient corroboration at trial for the self-serving testimony of Anita
and Sherry Cummings that they were victims of being controlled and dominated by Jeszie in
light of the absolute lack of any corraboration at trial of any of their claims to thar effect,

- and/or in light of the absence of any expert testimony finding that they were victims of

battered spouse syndrome.

z) Whether Anita and Sherry lied about how and when they killed Judy and Melizea in arder
to frame fessie in the mistaken belisf that they would not be chareed if they claimed duress

as a defensze to their actions,

18 Mr. Cummings’ convictions musi be reversed because they are based on the ademission
of unreliable evidence which required jurors to engaged in a process of making multiple layers af
inferences in order to arrive at a puilty verdict.

19. The evidence at trial was insufficient 1o suppart the conclusion of guilt beyond a
reasanzble doubt in this casze.

20. Mr. Cummings’ Statement of Arguments and Authoritics in Support of this Application

are set forth in Addendum A, which iz incorporated herein by reference.

IL MR. CUMMINGS HAS BEEN DENIED THE EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE

NSEL TN ALLLP ROCE :
Clatms for Relief

Z1. Due to ineffective assistance of eounsel, in the failure of prior eounsel to accord Mr.

Cummings the standard of representation for effective assistance of counsel in capital procesdings,
in all poior proceedings Mr. Cummings has been denied substantive and procedural due process, his
right to the effective assistance of counsel, a fair trial, a fair and reliable determination of the

appropriate sentence, and a meaningful and reliable appellate review of his conviction and sentence,

_B7-



@ &

as guarznieed by the Fourth, Fifth, Sixth, Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States

Constitution and Article 2, 662, 7,9, 19, 20 & 21 of the Oklahoma Constitution, 1f Mr. Cummings
had received effective assistance of counse], there is a reasonable probability that the putcome of

prior proceedings, including bath phases of his trial and his direct appeal, would have been different.

Factual Contentions jin Support

27, All other claims, facts, and allegations in this Application arc realleged and incarperated
by reference in this proposition, as well as the information in the Appendix, Addenda, and
information ta be produced at an evidentiary hearing on this Application. Related claims raised in
Mr. Cummings’ pending dirzct appeal are 2lso realleged and incorporated by reference (see App.
Brief, Proposition 10).

21, Ar all times matedal to this case Mr. Cummings was and is indigent and has been
represented by court-appoeinted counsel. During all prior proceedings, counsel failed 1o provide him
with canflict-free counsel, and counsel acting on his behall withow! interference from others, and
failed to provide him with the effective assistance of counsel.

74, Mr. Cummings was represenied ar trizl by OIDS staff atiomey Faul 5, Faulk. A1 all
times material to this case, Mr, Faulk had a burdensome caseload and inadeguate investigative and
other resources in order to devate sufficient time ta preparing for this case and provide M.
Cummings with effective assistance of counsel. Because Mr. Faulk had more elients and cases than
he could cffectively handle, Mr. Faulk had divided loyalties and 2 conflict on interest in how he
would aliocate his limited time and resources. Mr. Faulk in fact failed to devate sufficient time to
acquiint himself with the facts of this and case and adequately prepare for trial.

25. Mr. Faulk arranged for attomney Joseph (“Jody™) Minter V to serve as co-counsel in this
case. Mr. Minter was required to do so with a $5000 cap on payment for his services, which was
inadequate compensation for the services and ime commitment that was needed. Mr., Faulk
unreasonably relied on Mr. Minter to shore up Mr. Faulk's inadequate preparation, because the

contract with Mr. Minter did not provide for sufficient hours for Mr. Minter to do so. At all times
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x) Whether Anita and Sherry lied about when and how they cammitted these murders in light

of the tatality of the conflict, inconsistent and reliable evidsnee in this case.

¥} Whether there was sufficient corroboration at trial for the self-serving testimony of Anita
and Sherry Curnmings that they were victims of being controlled and dominated by Jeszie in
light of the absalute lack of any corraboration at trial of any of their claims to thar effect,

= andfor in light of the absence of any expert testimony finding that they were victims of

battered spouse syndeome,

z) Whether Anita and Sherry lied about Bow and when they killed Judy and Melissa in order
to frame Jessie ip the mistaken beli=f that they would not be charged if they claimed duress

as a defense o their actions.

18, Mr. Commings® convictions must be reversed because they are based on the admission
of unreliable evidence which reguired jurors to enpgaped in a process of making muoltiple layers of
inferences in order to armive at a guilty verdict.

19. The evidence at frial was insufficient 1o support the conclusion of guilt bevond a

reasangble doubt in this case,

20, Mr. Cummings’ Statement of Arguments and Autharitics in Support of this Application

are set forth in Addendum A, which is incorporated herein by reference.

IL MR. CTIMMINGS HAS BEEN DENIED THE EFFECTTVE ASSISTANCE

T COUNSEL TN AL ; ;

Claims for Relief

21, Duwe to meffective assistance of counsel, in the failure of prior counsel to aceard Mr.
Cummings the standard of representation for effective assistance of counsel in capital proceedings,
in all prior proceedings Mr, Cummings has been denied substantive and procedural due process, his
right to the effective assistance of counsel, a fair trial, a fair and reliable determination of the

appropriale sentence, and a meaningful and reliable appellate review of his conviction and sentence,
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as guaranteed by the Fourth, Fifth, Sixth, Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments to the Uniled Stales
Constimtion and Article 2, §§2, 7,9, 19, 20 & 21 of (he Oklahoma Constitution. If Mr, Cummings

had received effective assistance of counsel, there is a reasonable probability that the putcome of

prior proceedings, including both phases of his trial and s direet appeal, would have been different.

Fartual Contentipns in Support

22, Al other claims, facts, and allepations in this Application are realleged and incorporated
by reference in this proposition, as well as the information in the Appendix, Addenda, and
information to be prodused at an evidentiary hearing on this Application. Related ciaims raised in
Mr. Cummings' pending direct appeal are alse realleged and incorporated b reference (see App.
Brief, Propasition 10).

23, At zll times materzal to this case Mr. Cummings was and is indigent and has been
represented by court-appointed counsel. During all poor proc eedings, counsel failed to provide Inm
with conflict-free counsel, and counsel acting on his behalf withaut imerference from others, and
failed ta provide him with the effective assistance of counsel.

24, Mr. Cummings was represented at trial by OIDS stail atlomey Paul S, Faulk, Atall
times materal ta this case, Mr, Faulk had a burdsnsome cascload and inadeguate investigative and
other resources in order to devote sufficient time to preparing for this case and provide Mr.
Cummings with effective assistance of counsel. Becawse Mr. Faulk had more clients and cases than
he could effectively handle, Mr. Faulk had divided Joyalties and & conflict on interest in how he
would allocate his limited time and resources. Mr, Faulk in fact failed to devote suificient time to
acquaint himszelf with the facts of this and case and adequately prepare for trial.

25, Mr. Faulk arranped for attomey Joseph (“Jody™) Minter ¥V to serve as co-counsel in this
case, Mr. Minter was required to da so with a $5000 cap on payment for his services, which was
madequate compensation for the services and time commitment that was needed. Mr. Faulk
unreasonably relied on Mr. Minter to shore up Mr. Faulk's inadequate preparation, because the

contract with Mr. Minter did not provide for sufficient hours for Mr, Minter to do so. Al 2]l umes
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during his representation of Mr. Cummings, Mr. Minter had too many clients and ather

commiiments to devole sufficient time to this case, and he failed ta be adequately prepared for tal.
Mr. Minter has a reputation for neglecting cases, which has resulted 1o disciplinary pr9ctcdings {Tee
:S'Ime' of Offahoma ex rel flahoma Bar Association v, Joseph O Mincer, V, 6% OB] 19 (1997

26. Mr. Faulk failed to provide Mr, Minter with copies of all relevant and matenal
in t'-;;rmar.l'nn about this case in order for Mr. Minter to have an adequate understanding of this case
and to provide Mo, Cummings’ with effective advice. By way of example, Mr. Minter reparts that
he never was given copies of the avdio tapes that Mr. Faulk received duning discovery, and that Mr.
Minter never listened 1o them, incloding the taped conlessions of Anita that had not been ranscribed

until recently (see Appendix 13 & 19).
Pre-Trial and Guilt Phase

27. Despite being inadequately prepared for trial, Me. Cummings’ teial counsel failed 10
request necessary continuances. They were in a rush throughout the mial, and needed to get this mal
done and out of the way in order (o mowve on to cases of other clicnts,

28, Trizl counzel was ineffecrive in failing to investigate, develop and present available and
relevant evidence, Due to izl counsel’s fzilure to conduct a reasonably competent investization,
trial counse] was unable 1o competently advise Mr. Cummings or make competant straiegic
decisions, Furthermore jurors, and this Court on direct appeal, were denied material and relevant
information to assist them in judging the credibility and reliability of the prosecution’s evidence,

28. Tnal counsel failed to provide Mr. Cummings with adequate and appropriate advice
regarding the advisability of accepting the prasecution’s plea offer ta 2 Life sentence on Count | and
a Life Without Parole sentence on Count 11, Trial counsel failed to effectively negotiate with the
prosecition for a better plea offer, broavse counsel failed to be adequately prepared in order 1o
effectively marshal facts in support of a benter plea offer. Mr. Cummings® was prejudiced by this
despite his innocence of these offenses, because a criminal defendant must access a plea offer in
light of the potential evidence against him and whether 7 may be sufficient to convinece a jury to

convict and impose a death sentence.
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30. Trial counsel failed to protect Mr. Cummings’ right to a fair and impartial jury that
representcd a fair cross section of the commumiry, and one that could be fair and impartizl. Counsel
failed to adequately question potential jurors during jury selection in order to make necessary

-challenges for cause and to ratienally exercise peremptory challenges (s2e, 2.2, OR 4'.':?-T9 & T
1010-20). As a result, Mr. Cummings® jury included persons who were not qualified to serve on his
jur; (see Praposition 7) and jurors whe were biased against him and jurors could not weizh the
evidence impartially with an open mindsd.

31. Tral counsel were ineffective at both the guilt and sentencing stages of Mr. Cummings’
trial in failing to ahject, request appropriate jury admonitions ot mave for mistoals, raise as error and
otherwise preserve as error, issues affecting Cemmings’ fundamental nghts where the circumstances

' presented clearly required that such action be undertaken in order to pratect and preserve Mr.,
Cummings" nghts.

12, Trial counsel was ineffective in failing to investigate and present relevant evidence and
testimony, in failing to make relevant arguments based on the evidence at tnal, and in failing 1o
effectively cross-examine witnesses and impeach them with available information,

13 Trial counsel violated Mr, Cummings' constitutional rights at 1ial when they admitied
guilt to Accessory Afier the Fact (T. 373 & 376) by Mr. Cummings allegadly helping the women 1o
move Judy Mavo's bady fram the cellar to the pand where she was found, despite the fact that Mr.
Cummings denies that he was involved in moving the body, and recanted his false confession to the
contrary within a short time of giving it. In addition, mrial counsel made that admission without
obtaining from Mr. Cummings his informed consent to make that admission of guilt at tral aran
affirmative waiver of his nghts.

34. There could have been no reasonably competent strategic decision for trial counsel to
concede Mr. Cumrings’ alleged participation in moving Judy’s body. Counsel knew that Mr.
Cummings had recanted his false canfession within a short time of making #t. In addition, Mr.
Cummings never told his counsel that he had assisted in moving Judy’s body, but rather Mr.

Cummings consistently and repeatedly told counsel that he had not done that.
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15 Cpunsel’s unauthorized concession to the jury that Mr. Cummings had assisted in

moving Judy's body had the effect of annihilating Mr. Curimings’ only viable defense in this case:
thar the womnen had killed Judy and Melissa while he was away in Uklahoma City and he bad no
Knowledze of their parlicipation in the killings until Anita confessed to him the night before she
went to the palice.

" 36. There was omly one inference that jurors could draw from cauns el's conceding that Mr.
Cummings was an accessory after the fact in helping to move Judy's bady, 1o wil. that Mr.
Cummings had known far years that Anita had shot and killed Judy, and how Judy's body was
deposited at the pond, but he never reparted that 1o the qutharities, hence Mr, Commings must have
been involved in the decision 1o kill Judy. If Mr. Cummings knew that Amniia had killed Judy, then
he must have known that Anita and Sherry were also involved in getting rid of Mclissa, but did
nothing, from which jurors could only infer that he 2130 was involved in Melissa's disappezrance.
However, those inferences are not consistent with the truth -- that Mr. Cummings did not participate
in cither of these killings, direcily ar indirectly or in any manner.

17 Trial counse] were ineffective in failing to present evidence at triz] that the night before
Anita went to the authoritics she had confessed ta Mr, Cummings, n 2 najve anempt ta prompi him
to end his marmage to her, that the was the one who had shot and killed Judy and done away with
Melissa, Counsel were further ineffective in failing to pregent evidence that M. Cummings asked
Anita ta go with him to tell this to Sheriff Ward, and that was the real reason Anita went 1o the
autharitics: she knew that she had ta turn herself in first and give her version before Mr. Cummings
went 1o the authortics and told therm what Anita had tald him. Mr. Cammings was prejudiced by
this ormission because that evidence would have explained how Mr. Commings knew the basic
details about Judy's death in order ta falsely confess that he helped move her body, in an misguided
atternpt to absolve Sherry of blame. In addition, as a result of this omizsion by counsel, the
prosecution was allowed to argue to jurers that Mr. Cummings must have been involved in Judy’s

murder, because he did nat ask police who did it when he was first guestioned by them when

arrested {T. 373).
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18, Trial counsel were incffective in failing 1o move o Suppress Mr. Cumimings® {alse

confession to the police about moving Judy’s body, which confession was induced by one of the
interrogators by promises that Sherry would be released from custody, if exonerated by Mr.
C‘urnmings, and his children could be given to her while he was in jail. Throughouot pnii-:c:
questioning, Mr, Cumnmings repeatedly inquired about where his children were and expressed
concern that they would be placed 1o the cestody of Sherry’s mother and hence known child
malesters would have access to the children, Knowing about Mr. Cummings’ concerns, an (58]
agent told Jessie that Sherry’s mother was the only relative of the children fiving in Oklahema and
she would get the children, but that Sherry would get thern if Jessie would exonerate her. Based an
those inducements, Mr, Cummings falsely confessed to moving Judy’s body, atributing 1o himseld
the actions that Anita had told him Sherry had taken in maving the body.

39. Trial counsel failed to investigate and present evidence that David Patrer, the live-in
boyfriend of Sherry’s mother, and hiz brother, Patrick Potter who also lived with Sherry's mothar,
were child molesters. This evidence was necessary in order 10 establish Mr. Cummings’ motive for
giving his false confession to the palice, 1o wit: to clear Sherry of any involvement so she would ke
released from jail to take care of their children, rather than let the children be placed with Sherry’s
mother,

a0, Tral counsel were ineffective in failing to investigate and present evidence and
argument that both Sherry and Anita were in relatianships with other men at the time of the arrests in
this case, and wanted to end their marrage with Mr. Cummings, and hence had a mative to falsely
implicate Mr. Cummings in these offenses. Trial counsel alsa failed to present evidence and
argument that the women had cpportunity conspire to frame Mr. Cummings, including during their
drive together to Anita’s place of empleyment {he night before Anita went to the suthorities.

41, Trial counsel failed to give Mr, Cummings competent advice regarding his decision to
testify, as a result of which Mr. Cummings did not make a2 knowing, intelligent and yoluntary waiver
of his Fifth Amendment right not to testify, Mr. Cummmings, who has borderline intellectual

functioning, was overwhelmed by trial counsel’s insistence on making this decision for him, and
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hence Mr. Cummings’ will was overbome by tial counsel's forcefulness.

43. Tral counsel was ineffective in the cxtreme in the manner in which Anita and Sherry
were cross examined at trial. Trial counsel asked questions in such a manner which conveyed the
impression that he agreed with and endorsed the wornen's versions of what happened, -ar'.d was only
nitpicking with miner details, This impression was conveyed in two Ways:

g a) By asking questions regarding the women’s version using statements of fact as apposed

to qualifying the questions in terms of what the women alleged. These questions conveyed the

impression that counsel was adopting the women’s version af the offenses. For example:

Sherry: I seen him cross over & rasling, ¥es.
Trial counsel:  All fght. Jesse told vou to wait in the car, ngot?
Sherry: Yes (T.574)

b) By counsel frequently saying “okay” or “right” afier somelhing that one of the women
said in response to his questions, This communication to jurors caunsel agreed with whai the

women were saving. For example:

Sharry: There wasn't canversation on the gun until he got ready ta -- till
we gol ready 10 leave with Judy,

Defense Counzel: Right. (T. 382)

Shetry: Tust that Meligsa was—she had 2sked where we were going, and
she--and Jesze gaid that we was going to meet her mom,

Defense counsel: Okay. Jessie told her that in the house?

Sherry: [ don't recall if it was said in the house or in the car.

Defense counsel: Okay. (T.378)

47 Tral counsel fajled to file @ motion in limine and request a preliminary hearing,
pursuant to Evidence Code Rule 2103, with repard to the evidentiary sufficiency and admissibility of
the prosecution’s claim that Melissa had been “kidnapped” from Coal County and then taken to
Choctaw County where she was killed, Prior to trial the only evidence of the alleged kidnapping
was that: Melizsa and Mr, Commings were laughing and joking when he supposedly told her and

Sherry to pet in the car (PH-1 238 & 224-5; PH-11 39) and nothing eisc was said before they left (PH-
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11 95Y; nobody asked where they were poing (PH-1 53 & 113}, Mebissa did not ask where they were

gning (PH-IT 40); when they gat ta Choctaw County, Mr, Curnmings supposedly told Melissa o pet
out of the car because they were going to s=e her momma (PH-IL 97}, Melissa had not asked about
Ker mother any other time prior to this (PH-163); and Anita recalled “somebody™ telling Melissa
they were going 1o meet her momma, but she didn't know whe (FH-II 35 & 58). Given the
pr:jﬁdjcjal effect of exposing jurors ta specious allegations and arguments that Melissa had been
kidnapped, the evidence of a kidnapping was too insubstantial to permit that evidence to be heard by
the jury. Any probative value of Anita's self-serving testimony about samebody telfing Melissa that
she was going ta see her mother (which in itself was insufficient to constitute kidnapping) was
outweighed by the prejudicial effect of that claim.

44, Triz] counsel failed to file a motion in limine and request a preliminary hearing,
pursuant 1o Evidence Code Rule 2103, with regard to the evidentiary sufficiency and admissibility of
Amita’s claim that months after this affense Mr. Cummings, during rough bondage sex, whispered in
her ear a confession about slitting Melizsa's throat when he killed her. This ludicrous clam was
invented by Anita on December 2, 1994, months afier the arrests and just days before she testified at
the Preliminary Hearing (Appendix 17} Prior to that she told police that she never had any
indication of what might have happened to Melissa, and thought Mr. Cummings made Sherry kill
Melissa {Appendix 19, p. 34). Four menths later, she changed her story and said he had told her a
fe'w weeks after the offense that he had slit Melissa's throat. Thiz sudden change in Anita’s story
clearly was an attempt 1o curry favar with the prosecution by supplying false evidence to fill in a
serions evidentiary gap in the State’s case, and the prosecution knew that. Anita is a confessed killer
who desperately was trying to save herself from the death penalty by manufacturing far-fetched
claims. Under the circumstances of this case, it was fundamentally unfair to admit at trial every
allegation springing from Anita’s fertile imagination, and ial counsel were ineffective in failing to
tost the credibility, relizbility and admissibility of her claime before they were heard by jurors, Tral

counsel were further ineffective in failing to object to this testimony at trial.



45. Tral counsel failed to file a motion in limine and request 2 preliminary hearing,

pursuant to evidetice Code Rule 2105, with regard to the evidentiary sufficiency and adrmissibility of
Anita’s claims regarding the zlleged rape of Melissa Moody. Given the insufficiency of the
evidence as to that claim, the toal court dismissed Count T at the clase of the evidence (T. B35).

46 Trial counse] failed to move for a mistrial when Count I11 was dismissed, and failed to
IE:I.'.|1_] est that jurors be admonished not 1o consider any of the evidence admitted in support of Count
NI Any evidentiary sufficiency that Anita's uncarrchorated claim may have had, its prejudicial
effect was far outweighed by its probative value.

47 Trial councel failed to object and request a mistrial when Anita testified at tt3a] about
inadmissible hearsay by Melissa during Mr. Commings” alleged sexual encounter with Melissa. One
of the embellishments that Anita added to her confessions was that Mr. Cummings’ raped Melissa
befare she was killed, That claim is notably absent from Anita’s first eonfessions (see Appendix
16). Mot even Sherry eommoborated Anita’s claim that the two women watched while Mr. Cumrmings
supposedly raped Melissa, At trial, Anita added the further embellishment that Melissa 1old Mr.
Cummings that she had done it (i.e., oral sex) before in Arkansas (T. 702} This unreliabie and
inadrnissible hearsay allowed jurors 1o speculate that Mr. Cummings was the person who had sexual
contact with her in Arkansas, when he had not. In addition, jurors did not know that Melissa’s father
and older brothers, James and Henry Moody, were child malesters.

A% Tral counsel failed to properly inform themselves of the content of Anita’s July 29,
16904 confession to the police and Anita's July 30, 1994 confession to the police, which were
produced to them in the form of audio tapes. Counsel were further ineffective in failing to have
teanscripts prepared of the same. These tapes have recently been manseribed (Appendix 18 & 19
respectively). In addition, counsel were ineffective in failing 1o make cffective use of those
confessions by impeaching Anita with information contained in them that was material to her
credibility. By way of example, it was in the July 30, 1994 confession that Anita valunteers for the
first time her claim that Melissa was raped by Mr. Cummings. Sheriff Bill Ward, who had

extensively interviewed Anita prior to this, expressed is surprise that she had never told him about
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that before { Appendix 19 atp. 3}

49 Toal counsel was ineffective in failing to offer and have admitied inlo evidence relevant
portions of the tape recorded statement that Anita made to the palice in July 1994, T[':is resulied in
rj-ua State making an objection, which was sustainad, during ¢lesing arpuments when d:EﬂmSE counse]
attermpted ta refer to that statement to show that Anita did not get hr:r. facts ripght {T. E79).

" 50, Trial counsel were also incffective in failing to investigate and present evidence that
Anita was upset with Judy when she killed her, because the night before Judy had dropped Melissa
off at the Dairy Queen where Anita was working and made Amia take carc of Melissa while Judy
went drinking at Roland’s Bar.  People present at the Cummings’ house when Anitz got home from
work, including Loretta MceCullar, could have testified that Anita was in a snit over Judy daing that
(Appendix 7). In addition, Anita makes refercnee 1o this in her December 2, 1994 statement to the
police (Appendix 17). This was relevant because Anita denied at trial that she had an argument with
Judy before shoating. This omission by counse] was especially prejudicial to Mr, Commings
because it established the prabable motive for the fight berween Anita and Judy which escalated inta
Anita shooting and Killing Judy,

51. Trial counsel failed to investizate and present at trial available and admissible evidence
of the propensity of Anita and Sherry to use vialence to resolve dispuies (see Averment of Facts,
Parts F & G see afso, Appendiz 7). In the Cummings’ household and their extended circle af
relatives and foends, you resolve conflict on the spat by fizhting it out. Might makes right, and the
best fighter wins the argument. Both Sherry and Anita were seasoned fighters, and both knew how
to use a varicty of holds, kicks and maneuvers. This was relevant because the most probabla reason
for Judy's death was an argument between Anita and Judy that escalated into a fight and Anita
grabing a gun.

52 Trial counsel were ineffective in filing to investigate, discover and vse at izl evidence
to impeach State wimess Timothy Chancellor with his prior felany convictions and his mental health
history, which includes memory impairment prablems {Appendix 27), and in failing to request a

preliminary hearing, pursuant 10 OK BEvid. Code, §2103, out of the presence of the jury to determine
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fhe admissibility of Chancellor’s testimomy, Mr. Chancellor’s testimeony was particelarly prejudiciz]
because he claimed to have asked Mr. Cummings, years after these affenses, about the .38 that he
had =old to Mr. Cummings before these offenses. Chancellor purported to guote Mr. gummmgs a3
saving, in response, that the gun was a “gone san of a bitch™ (T. 478). Given Mr. Chancellor’s
memory problems, it is incredible that he could accurately recall Mr. Cummings using those precise
w-:::»;da In addition, others present during that conversation could have testified that was not what
Mr. Cummings said (Appendix 7). Chancellor’s testimany was particularly prejudicial because
jurors would have interpreted it as an admission by Mr. Cummings, which he had not in fact mads,
that the gun had been used to kill somebody and had been done away with to hide that fact,

53. Trial counsel fajled ta abject to Anita’s and Shemy's self-serving claims at trial that they
and their children had been abused by Mr. Cummings, and in failing 1o request a preliminary
hearing, pursuant to OK Evid, Code, §2104, out of the presence of the jury, 1o determine the
admissibility of those claims. There were ng medical records, teachers, counseloes, eye wilnesses or
any ather evidence offered to comoborate the women's claims. Given the absolute shsence of any
corroborating evidence of the women's claims these unsubstamiated allegations should not have
been admitied at trial. Mareaver, any probative value those claims may have had was ourweighed
by the prejudicial effect of their admission.

54. Trial counsel failed to investigate and present at triz] available and admizzible evidence
{0 rebut Anita’s and Shermy's claims that they and their children were abused and dominated by Mr.
Cummings. Counsel failed to: reguest the production of the children’s medical, school, and
counseling records; failed to request that the children be evaluated by a defense expert; and failed 1o
imterview teachers, counselors and other adults familiar with the children. By way of example,
Rabbie is the child that Mr. Cummings was primarily accused of abesing. However, Robbie started
attending school in the Fall of 1952, when he was four years ald. He was referred by the school for
counseling, which resulted in his being diagnosed with ADHD and attending regular monthly
cessions with @ counselor. The principal and teachers where Robbie attended school for two years

prior to the arrests report that there was no evidence that he was mistreated or abused in any way.

L i



J J

Robbie's counselor at the Guidance Clinic, Steve Beck, was interviewed by DHES in April 1994, and
he did not report any evidence of maltreatment or abuse. It was noted that Robbie was made to walk
off his cxcessive energy, but it was not considered to be abusive. (Appendix 43}.

" <5, Trial counse] failed to cansult with and present at trial the testimony of necessary
cxperts on relevant issues in this case. By way of example, trial counsel failed to consult with an
amﬁmpatngist, evoludonary psychologist, historian or socialogist regarding the socic-economic
wWhite trash™ subculoure in which Mr, Curnmings, his wives and the victims were raised, bved, and
socialized. As a result, jurors had insufficient information to correctly evaluaie the evidence at tnal.
Tral caunsel alsa failed to consult with an expert on Battered Woman Syndrome (BWE) to testify to
rebut Anita’s and Sherry's sclf-serving claims that they were dominated and abused by Mr.
Cummings.

56, Trial counsel knew of should have known that the prosecution would rely at trial om a
theory that Anita and Sherry are victims of Battered Woman Syndrome, or same analopous theory of
duress, and as such committed the offenses out of fear of Mr. Cummings. MNonetheless, trial counsel
failed to put the prosecution ta its burden of proaf an this theary. Tral counsel failed to file an
application with the court requesting that Anita and Sherry submit to 20 examination by an expert
witness for the defense for the purpose of determining whether either waman met the criteria for
BWS ora duress claim. Trial counsel failed to demand pre-trial notice of the facts upon which the
prosecution intended to use as an evidentiary predicate for requesting jurors to infer that the wamen
were victims of BWS or some analogous form of duress, and failed 1o request the production of any
and ail medical records for Anita and Sherry, and failed to request the production of any police
reports ar other documentation to support the BWS/duress claims. Trial counsel failed to file a
motion in limine to preclude from being admined at trial any evidence or arpuments that Anita and
Sherry acted under Mr, Cummings' dominion and out of fear of him unless the prosecution could lay
a sufficient factual predicate for such a claim at trial.

57. Trial counze] was ineffective in failing to consult with eppropnate memﬁl health experts

in this case and in failing to have Mr. Cummings evaluated by appropriate mental health experts.
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Die to trial counsel’s omission in this regard, they failed to investigate, develop and present

evidence to; rebut at the guilt phase Anita's and Sherry's false allegations that they were dominated

and abuzed by Mr. Cummings; and support at the sentencing hearing a sentence less ﬂ"l?-.ﬁ death (see,
.e.8., Appendix 5 & 6). )

58. Trial counsel failed to adequately impeach Anita and Shemry at trial with the
incansistencies in their various versions of this offense, and failed 1o adequately argue those
Inconsistencies during closing arguments to the jury (see, e.g., Appendix 117

35. Duoe fo insufficient pre-tnial preparation, trial counsel lacked an adequate knowledpe of
the facts of this case. By way of example, during cross examination of a police witness during a
mid-trial Jeckson v. Denna hearing, trial counsel is taken by surprise ta leam that Mr. Cummings
had been interrogated on at least two different occasions, with only the second interrogation having
been tape recorded (see T. 624-27).

60. Trial counsel were ineffective in failing to meaningfully and adequately consult with
Mr. Cummings. As a result, trial counsel failed to learn important information that they should have
presented at tmal in order to aid jurors in understanding the evidence. By way of example, jurars
heard a taped-recorded statement taken from Mr. Cumumings by OSBI agents the day afier his arrest
(Exh. 27). In that statement, Mr. Cummings makes reference (o a woad stove and moving the cauch,
This was meaningless 1o jurors because they had insufficient information 1o decipher it. If mrial
counse] had taken the time 1o adequately interview Mr. Cumimings, they would have leamned that
each Fall Anita and Sherry bring into the house the wood-buming stove which is their sole source of
heat in the house during the winter, The stove is put in the garage every Spring and brou ght into the
house in the Fall. Itis placed in the middle room which was being used as a livingroom at the time
of this offense. The couch is then moved out of the room onte the front porch, and sometimes the
children's bedroom is moved into the middle room to make sure they will be warm, and their ald
bedroom is then converted into a livingroom. Because Mr. Cummings’ father was dying of cancer
and had lost a considerable amnun!.. of weight, the wood stove was brought in carly that vear in order

to make sure he was warm. Like a typical male, Mr. Cummings did not pay much attention to when
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and why the women moved the fumniturs around and‘or brought in the woad stove, His best

recollection is that the wood stove had been moved into the house while he was in at the hospital
with his father in Oklahoma City, and did not find it odd for the couch to be gane, In addition, Mr.
Lummings and bis family never purchased new fumniture, but salvaped old fumniture, which resulted
in there being 2 constant change of couches in his house, as beat up cauches were replaced by used
c-:rulnr:hes in slightly better condition.

61. Trnal counsel was ineffective in failing to present evidence at trial that, a few days afier
Mr. Cummings had atternpted to clear Sherry of any culpability by falsely claiming that he was the
one who helped dispose of Judy's body, Mr. Curamings contacted Apent Birchfield and informed
him that he had lied about assisting with moving Judy'z body.

62. Trial counse] failed to effectively present the testimony of witness Eddie Fields and
failed 1o impeach his credentials 25 a “minister”, which allowed the prosecution to mislead jurors
into believing that Anita Cummings told Mr. Fields abaut shooting Judy Moody because she was
prompted by a desire to “confess her sins,” thereby cloaking her admission to Mr. Fields with a
credibality that it did not bave,

63. Tnal counsel failed to interview and call as a defanse witness at trial Stella Knight wha
was available 1o testify that Mr. Cummings had not called home the day of the offense (see
Appendix 31}, which would have impeached Anita’s and Sherry's testimony that he had called home
that afternoon; counsel's failing to impeach the women’s false claims about this phane call taking
place resulted in jurars inferring that Mr, Cummings had called home to check on whether the
women had killed Judy Mayo.

G4. Trial counsel failed to investigate, develop, present evidenee to support, and
meaningfully argue Mr. Cummings' only defense;: that Sherry Cummings dominated and controlled
thiz houschold; that she and Anita killed Judy and Melissa, without Mr, Curnmin g5 knowledge,
while he was out of town; that the women were bisexual lovers who each also had male lovers other
than Mr. Cummings; that the women canspired to frame Mr. Cummin Es in order to end their

marmiage to him; that each wife gave a series of inconsistent versions of what happened which are
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Dhue to trial counsel’s amission in this regard, they failed to investigate, develop and present

evidence to: rebut at the guilt phase Anita’s and Sherry's false allegations that they were dominated

and abused by Mr. Cummings; and suppott at the sentencing hearing a sentence less I]Jan death (see.
s, Appendix 5 & 6. :

58. Tnal counsel failed to adequately impeach Anita and Sherry at trial with the
inconsistencies in their vatious versions of this offense, and failed to adequately zreve those
inconsistencies during closing argumments to the jury (see, e.g., Appendix 117,

39, Due to insufficient pre-trial preparation, trial counse] lacked an adequate knowledge of
the facts of this case. By way of example, during cross examination af a palice witncss duting a
mid-trial Sackson v. Denne hearing, trial counsel is taken by surprise to leamn that Mr. Cumminzs
had been interrogated on at least two different accasions, with only the second interropation having
been tape recorded (see T. §24-27).

60. Tnal counsel were ineffectve in failing 1o meaningfully and adequately consult with
Mr. Cummmings. As a result, trial counsel failed to learn important information that they should have
presented at trial in order ta aid jurors in understanding the evidence. By way of example, jurors
heard a taped-recorded statement taken from Mr. Cumimings by OSBI apents the day afler his arrest
(Exh. 27). In that statement, Mr. Curnmings makes reference to a wood stove and maving the couch.
This was meaningless to jurors because they had insufficient information 1o decipher it. If erfal
counsecl bad taken the time to adequately interview Mr. Cummings, they would have learned that
cach Fall Anita and Sherry bring inte the house the wood-burning stove which is their sole source of
heat in the house duning the winter. The stave is put in the garage every Spring and brought into the
house in the Fall. It is placed in the middle room which was being used as a livingroom at the time
of thiz offense. The couch is then moved out of the room onto the front porch, and sometimes the
children’s bedroom is moved into the middle room to take sure they will be warm, and their old
bedroom is then converted into a livingroom, Because Mr, Cummings® father was dying of cancer
and had Jost a cansiderable amount of weight, the wood stove was brought in early that vear in order

1o make sure he was warm, Like 8 typical male, Mr. Cummings did not pay much attention to when
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and why the women moved the furmniture around and‘or brought in the waad stove. His best
recollection 15 that the wood stove had heen moved into the house while he was in at the hospital
with his father in Oklahema City, and did not find it odd for the couch 1o be gane. In addition, M.
Lurmmings and his family never purchased new fumiture, but salvaped old fumniture, which resulied
in there being & constant chanpe of couches in his house, as beat up couches were replaced by used
mu‘::hes in slightly better condition.

61. Trial counsel was ineffective in failing 1o present evidence ar trial that, a few days afier
Mr. Cummings had atternpied to clear Shersy of any culpability by falsely claiming that he was the
ane who helped dispose of Judy's body, Mr. Cummings contacted Apent Birchiield and informed
him that he had lied zbout assisting with moving Judy’s body.

62. Tral counsel failed to effectively present the testimony of witness Eddie Ficlds and
failed 1o impeach his credentials a5 a “ministet”, which allowed the prosecutian to mislead jurors
into believing that Anita Cummings told Mr. Fields ahaut shooting Judy Moody because she was
prompted by a desire 1o “confess her sins,” thereby cloaking her admission to Mr. Fields with a
credibility that it did not have,

63. Tral counsel failed to interview and call as a defense witness at tmal Stella Knight who
was available to testify that Mr. Cummings had not called home the day of the offense (see
Appendixz 31}, which would have impeached Anfta’s and Shermy's testimany that he had called home
that afternoon; counsel’s failing to impeach the women’s false claims about this phone cail taking
place resulted in jurars inferring that Mr. Commings had called home 1o check on whether the
women had killed Judy Mayo.

G4. Trial counsel failed to investigate, develop, present evidenee to support, and
meaningfully argue Mr. Commings' only defense: that Sherry Cummings dominated and controfled
this houschold; that she and Anita killed Judy and Melissa, without Mr, Cumemin g5 kmowledee,
while he was oot of town; that the women were bisexual Jovers who each also had male lovers other
than Mr. Cummings; that the women canspired to frame Mr. Cummin Es in order to end their

martiage to him; that each wife gave a series of inconsistent versions of what happened which are
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conflicting with what the other wife claimed, and are unreliable to the extent of whelly lacking in

credibility.

65, 66. Trial counsel failed (o investigate and present evidence at inal that Mr. Cummings
did nat own any handeuffs &t the time of the offense, and that he 4id not acquire them wnti] 1992 in
connection with locating bond jumpers for bondsmen in the arca. Trial counsel also failed o present
evjEen ce that Mr. Cummings and his wives owned handeuffs at the ime of their arrests because all
of them were invelved in bond recovery activities, and hence the handcuffs were tools of therr trade,
Without this informatien, jurers were mislead to believe that the handeuffs belonged to them for
reasons &lleged by Anita at trial -- abusing the children andfor bandage sex —, which they were not.

67. Due 1o ineffective assistance of counsel, jurars did not know that Anita and Sherry
Cummings had a consensual bisexuval relationship, thal began before Anita's marmiage to &Ir
Cummings, and that Sherry and Anita were lovers. This evidence was extremnely relevant 1a their
eredibility and their matives to frame Mr. Cummings for an offense which the women bad
committed,

8. Trial counsel failed to investigate and present available evidence to show that Anita
Cummings lied at trial when she claimed she did not know Mr, Cummings was already marmed to
Sherry Cummings when Anita married him, and she lied when she sa1d she did not learn about the
marriage o Sherry until Mr. Curmnmings and Anita moved to Oklahoma a feww months after getting
married. Anita was living with Shermry and Mr. Cummnings when she married him. Sherry artended
their wedding, and Anita and Sherry had already engaged in bisexval sexpal activity before Anita’s
marriage to Mr. Cummings. This intimate relationship between Sherry and Anita was relevant to
their motive to conspire together 1o frame Mr. Cummings, and was relevant to impeaching their
atternpts at trial to portray themselves as having been dominated and abused by Mr. Cummings. In
addition, Anita had informed a social worker in 1994, in connection with proceedings for Mr.
Cummings to adopt Anita’s son Robbie, that she knew Mr. Cummings was married to Shermy when
she married him (see Appendix 43).

6%, Tnal counsel failed to investigate and present available evidence to impeach Anita

=101-



Cummings' false claims 2t trial that Mr. Curmmings would engage in bondage sex with her

(Appendix 7).

70. Trial counsel failed to interview James Moody and hence failed to learn that the OSEI
-Teport about its interview with James was inaccurate. This was extremely prejudicial to Mr.
Cummings because it resulied in trial counsel believing the report accurately repoerted that Judy had
11::].:-{ James Moody a week before her death that Mr. Cummings was molesting Melissa. James
Magdy would have informed trial counsel that Judy never told him anything of that nature.

71. Counsel failed 1o make proper and timely ohjections to instances of prosecuterial
misconduict at the guilt phase (see, .4, Propasition 3, below].

72. Trial counsel failed to effectively litigate Mr. Cummings® request fo sever Count | from
Counts IT and I1L

73, Tral counsel failed to investipate and present evidence pointing to other suspects who
assisted Anita and Sherry in committing this offense, including disposing the bodies of Judy and
Melizsa, and failed to cstablish the motives that those other suspects waould have had in assisting the
women. The most likely other suspects were: Sherry's mother and her boyfriend, David Potter, who
lived in Atoka County between Atoka and where Melissa's body was found; and Daniel Franklin
Chick, one of Shermy's lovers who was living in the Coal pate area at the time of the offense and who
mysieriously moved inta the Cummings’ househald a few weeks after these offenses.

74. Trial counse] was ineffective in failing to object to inadmissible hearsay at m':ﬁ, and
request that it be stricken from the recond. By way of cxample, Anita was allowed 1o testify that
"Rev. Fields™ had said to her that everybody knew that Me. Cummings was involved in these
murders, but nobedy could prove it (T. 759).

75, Tral counse] failed to interview and call as a defense witness Ella Faye Potter wha
would have impeached Sherry's and Anita’s version of this offense. In her statements to the police
{Appendix 35), Ella Faye reported that she had gane back to the Cummings’ house the day Judy
died. She was looking for Judy, Judy had not shawn up for dinner at Ella Faye's house as they had

discussed. Ella Faye went ta the Cummings® house between 7:00 - 8:00 pro the day Judy was killed.
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Nobody was there and Judy’s truck was nat there. This mesns that Judy and her pickup had been

moved by then, nat 5-6 hours later when Mr. Cummings arrived hame from Oklahoma Ciry.

76. Trial counsel similarly failed to present the testimony of Lotetta McCullar whao alsa
~went to the Cummings’ house that night. In her September 1991 slatement ta the police (Appendiz
333, Loretta reported that she stopped at the Curnmings ' house around 10:00 pm the day Judy was
kil]-:d. and nobody was home and Judy's truck was not there. That is further proat that Judy and her
truck were moved while Mr. Cummings was still in OkJahama City.

77 Tria] counse] failed to impeach Anita’s and Sherry’s claims that they had no opperiunity
to get away from Me. Cummings. Mr, Cummings was often away from home for one or more days
at a time doing odd jobs in Texas and elsewhere, and the women biad many opporiunities to leave
Mr. Cummings. By way of example, Anita Cummings went hame with her children 1o Batesville,
AR, to see her mother in January 1994, when her mother kad bypass surgery. Moreaver, the women
aften went together to take the kids to doctar’s appointments and to tun other ermands. M.
Cummings received a $5000 lump sum payment from Social Security in 1993, which was deposited
in a joint checking and savings accounts. Sherry had the check book in her purse when she was
arrested. The women had vehicles, money and opportupities to leave Mr. Cummings, and jurors
should have known that.

=8 Trial counce] failed to investigate the medical records of Anita Commings in order to
impeach her false claims that she had been abused by Mr. Cummings, had an eating disorder, and
used birth control bills in excess to cauge bleeding,

20, Trial counsel failed to investigate the medical records of Sherry Cumumings in order o
jmpeach her false claims that she had been abuzed by Mr. Cummings (see, .8, Appendix T

0. Tral counsel were ineffective in failing to present evidence at trial that Mr. Cummings,
Anita and Sherry owned handcuffs in connection with their activities as bond recovery agents. They

would use the handeuffs in making citizens arrests of persons for whom bench warrants had been
issued for violating the conditions of their bail bonds. By way of example, Anita Cummings was

paid, in 1993 or 1994, by Kidd Bonding and by Shiplet Bonding for bringing Margaret Vitela mto
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custody.

81. Tral counsel failed to investigate and present evidence that Melissa Moody was an
active and rehellious young adolescent, and was a “mama’s girl” (Appendix 7), such that she would
'I!I!I'.'IT have meekly and quictly allowed Anita and Sherry to confine her in a small bedroom for over ten
hours, would not have allowed herself to be handcuffed for hours without protest, and would have
insi;tu:m!}r asked about her mother during the 2lleped confinement. This evidence would have
imp=ach :.r.i the wamen’s claims that thev kept Melissa confined in their small bedroom for over 10
haurs, and was handeuffed during much of that time, and that Melissa never complained or
protested, and never asked about her mother. Given the improbabilities of the wives’ claims in light
of Melissa's character, with this evidence jurors would have realized that Melissa was not kept alive
far over 10 hours after her mother's death, but was prabably killed contemporanecusly with her
mother.

82. Trial counsel failed to investigate and present evidence that Melissa Moody was a YirEin
and had not begun menstruating as vet {Appendix 7). This testimeny would have served to impeach
the Anita claim that Melissa would valuntarily submit to sexual activity, and joke around right afier.
1t would also have served to dispel any innuendo that Melissa might have been pregnant at the time
of her death.

£3, Tral counse] failed ta analyze the physical evidence in this case, and failed to present
evidenes and arguments that the physical cvidence is inconsistent with Anita’s and Sherry’s claims
as to how Judy Mavo was shot 1o death. By way of cxample, trial counsel farled to argue that the
path of the bullet wounds, as indicated on the Mcdical Examiner's Reporl (Appendix 14), is
inconsistent with Anita's version af how she shot Judy, and that Judy could have been shot during an
argument; and failure to argue that the abrasion on the leg was mest likely the result of a scufile
during that acgument: and failure to clicit that the 2brasion an the leg could not have been a rops
burn, and that it had to have been inflicted pre-death.

£4, Trial counse] failed to investizate Anita Cummings® religious beliefs and attitudes poar

to her arrest in this case. As a result, counsel failed to leamn that Anita had ne relipious beliels and
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consider=d herself ta be an atheist. Counsel fziled to impeach Anita’s atterpt at trial to portTay

herself as a contrite murderess who “confessed” her sinstoa minister (Eddie Fields, who has
questionable clergy credentials) oot of remorse. Counsel also failed to object to Amita’s fake
d"ispla;-.rs of religiosity in the courtraanm, including wearing 2 erucifix on 2 chain around her neck and
carry a Bible with her to the witness stand.

p 25 Counsel knew or should have known that Mr. Cummings would be prejudiced by having
this case tried by a jury drawn from residents of Coal County. Coal County is a sparsely pepulated
county with a population of less than 6000 people in 1930. The county seat 15 Coalgate, which has a
populatian under 2000 people, Most of the residents of Coalgate and Coal County knew Mr.
Cumniings and his family, or had heard about them. Given the nolorety from their househald
consisting of three martial partners, marny TUmors circulated about Mr. Curnmings in the county. A
May 7, 1996 newspaper article in the Ada Evening News nated that this case “has attracted
tremendous interest and discussion in Coal County since the rmurders occurred in 19917 {Appendix
50}. Most of the jurors whe presided at Mr. Cummings’ trial stated that they had read about the case
in the newspaper and/ar heard about it on T.V. The 1394 arrests contributed significantly to rumors
in Coal County. Local newspaper coverapge of this casc included inadmizzible information. For
example, an August 3, 1994 article m the Coalgate Record Register makes reference to Mr.
Cummings having failed an OSBI palygraph, a wfamily”™ lifestyle” extending beyond the traditional
one man-one worman marrage, and allegations of mind control, fear and sbuse (Appendix 50).

86, During the undersigned post-conviction counsel’s investigation of this case, considerable
time was spent in Coal County, Practically everyone spoken 1o knew the Cummings and had stories
to tell about them. An cxample af the unfounded rumors about this family is the story that a baby
had been buried behind the Cummings' house. The OSEI heard this rumor, questionsd Sherry about
it in August 1994, and found it to be groundless.

27. Tral counsel failed ta file and litigate appropriate mations to corract Mr. Cumrmings
name as it appears in the Information and pleadings in this case, and failed to file a2 motion in limine

to prohibit Mr, Cummings being referred to 23 “Jageie James” in the presence of the jury, and failed
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to ohject at trial to the use of “Jessic James" to refer to Mr, Commings.

£8. Trial counsel failed to investigate and present evidence to show that the Missing Person
report admitted at trz] (Exhibit 23, reproduced in Appendix 40) was not signed by Mr. Cummings,
but was signed by his father, The signature on the Missing Person report is that of Mr. Cummings’
father. Mr. Cummings first name is “Jessie” and his father's first name was “Jesse™, The signature
on the Missing Person report is that of “Jesse Cumnmings™ and it is his father's handwriting.

£9, Trial counsel failed to present evidence that Ella Faye Potier was the person who
informed Mr. Cummings that Judy’s pickup had been scen by people two days after her death and
that it was parked on the side of Highway 43 ncar Ella Faye’s house {Appendix 35). Tnal counsel
also failed to present evidence that Mr. Cummings then reporied the location of Judy's pickup to the
Shenff"s Office and he was told to move it before somebody stripped it. Due to these omissions,
jurors were allowed to speculate that Mr. Cummings knew where the truck was and moved 1t (T.
485-86), because he had been invaolved in Judy's death and leaving the pickup there.

90, Tral counsel were ineffective in failing to review all of the evidence abtained by the
OSBI and faw enforcement apencies during their investigation of these offenses, including evidence
seized from the Cummings’ houschold, Trial counsel enly viewed the pholes and evidence that the
prosecution planned ta use at tdal, As a result, trial counsel was not aware that the OSBI had in its
possession sexually explicit photos seized from the Cummings’ household, which depicted adults,
including Anita and Sherry Cumimings, engaging in sexual activity with a vanety of other adulls,
These pholos were televant ta show the women’s bisexual relationship with each other and ather
females, and potentially identified the third person that they recruited to assist them m disposing of
Judy'’s body and Melizasa.

91, Tral counsel] failed to request that jurors otherwise qualified to setve on the jury except
for their views on the death penalty wonld be permitted to serve duning the guilt phase of the trial,
and to request that additional alternate jurors should be selected for each such juror in order o

replace during the sentencing stage of the jury trial those jurors not qualified to decide sentencing.
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including one of a voung child, and arguing proportionality was doomed to failure.

96. To make things worse, defense counse] during closing argument also conceded, without
Mr. Cummings’ consent or advance knowledge, that Mr. Cummings had raped Melisza before she
;-'as. killed and had raped Lahoma Yaws [} when she was 14 years old (T. 953, a04). Mr. Commings
had never tald his counsel that he commitied either of those rapas. At the conclusion of the gnilt
ph:;se, the trial eourt had eranted a directed verdict on Count IT1 which was premised on the rape of
Melissa. There was considerable evidence that could have been use to argue that the rape of Lahoma
Yaws II was a fabrication that Anita started, which Lahoma 11 initially denied but subsequently
agreed 1o say happened, becanse she is Sherry's younger sister. Lahoma IT had never reported the
rape to the police. Despite her claim that she became pregnant and had a miscarnage, she had never
seen a medical dector,  Although jurors did not know this, Lahoma [I had made sexual assault
allegations against her mother's bovfriend the manth before this alleged rape, which she recanted.
Nor did jurors know that many of Lahoma's relatives do not even believe this rape cver happened,
and they report that she was sexually active long before the alleged incident.

97. Conceding two murders and two rapes was tantameunt to conceding the comtinuing-
threat aggravators in this case. Trial counsel are professionally prohibited from making such
concessions of guilt without the informed consent and advance knowledge of their client. Trial
counse] are professionally prohibited from admitting puilt when the client has never admitted gutlt 1o
thermn. There can be no reasonably compertent strategic reason for admiting goilt under the
circurnstances of this case.

98. At the sentencing stage of Mr, Cummings’ trial, counsel was ineffective in failing 10
investigate, develop, present and argue relevant mitigating evidence and evidence ta rebut the
aggravating circumstances in this case (see Averment of Facts, above). Trial counsel's preparation
for the penalty stage was haphazard and unfocused, depriving Mr. Commings of his nght eo
effective assistance of counsel in the determination of the appropriate sentence in this case and his
right to a reliable sentencing decision free of arbitrary feetors. Trial counsel failed to provide jurors

with the taols nesded in arder to channel and guide their discretion and for jurors to give effect to
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relevant mitigating circumstances.

00, Trial counsel failed to request a mistrial as to the sentencing stage when the trial court
dismissed Count HI (T. 855) which had been premised oo Anita's allegations that Melissa had been
raped. Trial counsel aleo should have filed 2 motion in limine prior to the seniencing phaze to
prohibit the prasecution from relying on or making any arguments regarding that claim which had
he1:j1 made by Anita to bolster her duress claim, but which was nat corroborated by Sherry or any
other cvidence. There was insufficient indicia of reliability as to Anita’s claim that Melissa had been
raped by Mr. Cummings for that claim to be admissible. Marcover, the prejudicial value of the weak
asseriian by Anita about the rape substantially outweighed its prabative value, and should not have
been considered by the jury or argued by the prozecution. When the prosecution maved o
incorpotate at the sentencing stage all of the guilt-stage evidence, trial counsel also should have
objected to incorporating Anita's testimony about the alleped rape of Melissa, and asked jurors ta be
admonished not to consider it, 2nd the prosecution direcied not 1o use it. Morcover, jurors shoufd
have been given a jury instruction which directed them net to consider that evidence, andfor to
permit jurors to comsider it only if jurors found sufficient evidence to carroborate the testimany of
Anita, who was an accomplice to the afleged rape.  Due to defense counsel’s failure to protect Mr.
Cummings’ rights, the death sentences in this case sre tainted by the prosecution’s heavy reliance in
closing arguments on the unsubstantiated allegation made by Anita Cummings that Melissa had been
sexually assaulted by him before her death (T.D90-92, 595-06).

100, Trial counse] fziled ta investigate and present available evidence to rebut State wimess
Lahama Yaws II claim that Mr. Commings had raped her in Aprl 1891, failed to request a
preliminary hearing, pursuant to QK Evid. Code §2103, 10 deterrnine the admissibility of Lahoma's
testimony, failed to abject to her testimony at trial, failed to adequately impeach her, and failed to
arpue in closing arguments her motives to lie and all available inferences that she was lying.

101. Tral eounsel failed to have Mr. Cummings evaluated by an appropriate mental health
professional. As a result, jurors were denied relevant information about Mr, Curmmings and his

intellectual limitations, including the fact that he has an 1 LQ. which places him in the borderline
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retarded range of functioning (see Appendix 3).

162, Trial counsel failed to investgate, develop and present evidence, including expert
testimony, regarding Mr. Cummings’ addiction to Percodan as a result of multiple Jeng-term painful
medical conditions, and the effects of that addiction on his thought processes.

103. Trial counsel failed to request an over-night recess berween the jury’s verdict at the
gu{']t[ phaze and the commencement of the sentencing heaning (see Propositian 4},

104, At the sentencing stage, tal counsel anly called a few wimesses who provided
minimal information about Mr, Cummings and basically were called to ask the jurors to spare his
life, The undersigned has uncovered an abundance of information about Mr. Cummings' childhood
and development which s relevant to the aggravation and mitigation issues in this case, Tnal
counsel failed to ascertain and present this information. As a result jurors were denied relevant
inforrmation about Mr. Cumnmings in particular the hereditary and environmental influences which
prevented him from having meaningful options in his life,

105. Counsel failed to present the testimony of ap expen with expestise in the White Trash
culture relevant to this case. Such testimony was pecessary to aid jurars in understanding the
environment and values in which Mr. Cummings was raised. Without that information to 21d jurors,
they lacked a understanding of how the confluence of numercus cultural factors beyand his control
limited Mr. Commings choices in life.

106. Counsel also failed to consult with and present the testimony of a witness @ testify
regarding the conditions of confinement in prison for a person convicted of First Degree Murder in
Oklahoma and sentenced to Life or LWOP, including the Department of Corrections classification
system for keeping such persons in secure facilities. Without this information, jurors were unzhle o
meaningfally assess the weight to be given to the “continuing threat” aggravating circumstance, or
give appropriate considaration to the life-sentencing options.  Lay persons who are unfamiliar with
prisons have a misconception that prisons are country clubs where prisoners spend their days lolling
around watching T.V., excrcising in weight rooms, and playing basketball. Feople unfasmiliar with

prisuns are unaware of the harsh conditions and severe restrictions under which maximum security
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prisoners live, and the security measures vsed to prevent escapes and other problems, As a result,

they fail to understand that Life and LWOP are extrem ely harsh and severe punishments.

I07. Trial counsel fajled to research, file and argue motions in limine and assert objections
at trial to the prosecution’s evidence in support of the continuing threat aggravating circumstance
{I..s'ee Proposition 6),

c 108, Counsel failed to make proper and timelv objections ta instances of prosecutorial
misconduct at the sentencing stage (ree, e, &, Proposition 3, befow),

10%. Trial counzel was ineffective in faj ling to ensure that jurors were properly, adequataly
and correctly instructed as to the relevant law at the sentencing stape of Mr, Cummings® trial (5ee
Propasition 6).

Direct Appesal

110. Mr. Cummings is being represented on direct appeal by William H. Luker, Ezq.,
Division Chief for the Capital Direct Appeals Division of the Oklahoma Indigent Defense System.

111. Appellate counse] was ineffective in failing to ensure a complete and proper record was
filed on appeal, and in failing to praperly raise and otherwise properly presenve as emor mertorous
155ues affecting Mr, Cummings® fundamental i ghts where the circumstances presented clear]y
required that such action be undertzken in order to protect and presacve his rights,

112, Asis moare fully set forth in this Application, thers are i emificant and abvious issues
implicating the constitutionally and fundamental fairness of Mr. Cummings' trial that were not
asserted on dircet appeal by appellate counsel. Some of th= issues asseried by appellate counsel are
clearly significantly weaker than issues asserted in this post-conviction application. Hence, there
could be no reasonably cormpetent strategic decizion by appellate caunsel not to pursue availzble
issues that would have required the reversal of Mr. Commings' convictions and/or sentences on
direct appeal.

113. This Court’s decision in Walker v, Srare, 933 P.2d 327 (Ok1.Cr. 1897) constituted a
material and significant departure from what was the common understanding of the Bar of criminal

apprals counsel in the State of Oklahoma as to the scope of their dury and responsibility to
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investigate facts outside the “record on appeal” as defined by Rule 1.13(F), Rules of the Court of

Criminal Appeals. Prior te the decision in Walker, appellate counsel did not have notice there would
be such a substantial change in the respansibilities of appellate counsel in a capital cage in
Oklahoma. Hence, Walker denied OIDS and its Capital Direct Appeals (CDA) Division with a
sufficient opportunity to restructure the staffing and resources available in the CDA Division in
urd;:r to provide Me. Cumnmings with representation which compaorts with Walker.

‘1 14. at all times material to this case, DIDS' CDA Division lacked sufficient personne] and
resources, including money to consult with appropriate experts, to engaged in the wide-ranging
investipation that has been condusted by the undersigned counsel. Due to Jack of adequate
resources, appellate counsel and the CDA Division had a conflict of interest in how their sparse
resources were allocated between Mr. Cummings and their other clients,

115. To the extent the “record on appeal” put appellate counsel en notice to reasanably
investigate any fact matter that is the basis for an issue in this Applicacion, and appeflate coun 5¢)
failed to investigate it, Appellate Counscl d=nied Mr. Cummings effective represemation on divest
appeal in failing to conduct that investigation. To the extent the record on appez] did nat put

appeliate counsel on notice to investigate such facts that have now come (o light, then thosc facts

were "unavailable™ on direct appeal {see Propesition 1).

Frejudice

116. Mr. Commings was prejudiced by counsel’s errors and omissions bath individually and
curnuiatively.

117. Mone of the emors and omizzions of Mr. Cummings’ prior counsel may fairly be
ateributed to a reasoneble strategy. Had Mr. Cummings received the effective assistance of counsel,
there is a reasonzble probability that he would net have been convicted of First Degrea Murder and
sentenced to death, and the outcome of this Court's appellate review of his conviction and sentence

would be different.
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118. Mr. Cummings’ Statement of Arguments and Authorities in Support of this Application

are set forth in Addendum A, which is incorporated herein by reference.

11 SC ICTBY T ] TN USIN EVID
TAL EVIDENCE N

DENTED MR. CUMMINGS A FATR TRIAL.

Claims for Relief

119. Misconduct by the prosecution deprived Mr. Cummings of his rights to a fair tral, 2
fair and reliable sentencing determination, and 2 fair and full appellate review, in violation of his
rights under the Fifth, Sixth, Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution,
and Article 2, 862, 7, %, 19, and 20 of the Oklahoma Conatirtion.

actnal C i in Support

120. Al other claims, facts, and allegations in this Application are realleged and
incorporated by reference in this proposition, as well as the information in the Appendix, Addenda,
and information to be produced at ap evidentiary heading on this Application. Related claims raised
in Mr. Cummings’ pending direct appeal are also realleged and incorporated by reference (see App.
Brief, Propositions 4, B & 13}

121. The prosccution knowingly used false, misleading, and inaccurate evidence, testimony
and arguments at trial, and knowingly permitted and created false impressions as to the evidence at
trial, including the examples cited herein.

122. The prosecution failed to disclose to the defense all cvidence i its passession and
control, or that of its agents, that was favorable and matenal 1o the 15sue of gwlt and/or punishment,
including impeachment evidence and evidence which could have reasonahly weakened or affected
evidence introduced apgainst Mr. Cummings.

123, Itis fundamentally unfzir and intentionally misleading to jurors for the prosecuticn (o
take inconsistent positions with co-defendants. At Mr. Cummings’ trial, the prosecution took the

position that Mr. Cummings was responsible for Anita shooting Judy, even though he was out of
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town, based on the State’s theory that he instifled such {ear in Anita that she Eilled in defense of

hersell and/or her young son, because Mr. Cursmin £5 supposedly had threatened to kill them if she
did not obey his 2lleged order to kill Judy. If the prosecution tmul ¥ believed that Anita acted ont of
duress, that would have absolved Anita of all cniminal responsibility for killing Judy, Nonetheless,
the prosecution required Anita to plea guilty to murder in exchan e for which she is serving & Lifa
SE!]j[EnCE, which is fundamentally inconsistent with Anita being legally non-respansible for Judy's
death. Similarly, the prosecution fock the position that Sh EITY s parlicipation in these kiflings was
the resuit of the duress arising from her claimed fear of Mr, Cummin 5, If she acted out of duress,
that would absolve her of criminal respon sibility. Monetheless, she pled guilny to two counts of
accessory after the fact for which she is serving conebrrem 33-year sentences, The prasecution’s
pasition at Mr. Commings® trial is fundamentally inconsistent with its pasition regarding the
canvictions and sentencing of Anita and sherry. Moreover, jurors wers not sware of these
inconsistencies, Among other things, the jury charze did not provide jurars with meaningful
instructions regarding the prosecution’s burden of proving duress beyond a reasonable doubt (see
Proposition ).

124. The prosecution knew or should have known that Sherry had made accusations to law
enforcement authorities that she had been raped by several males durin E her martiage to Mr.

Cummmgs an-::'l that those accusations were not found ta be suffi -::le:ml:.- refiable and credible ta file

—_— iy e -

charges agaln:.t any of the men 50 accused {see ﬂppend:}: 7 &: 200 Sherr}' 5 unsubstannatcd rape
allegations were r2levant to her credibility and truthfulness. This information was not disclosed 2o
defense counsel prior to or during trial, in violation of Hrady, and it has only recently come ta light
(id. .

125. The prosecution knew or should have known that there was no evidence ta corroborate
Anita Cummings’ self-serving allepations about the supposed rmpe of Melissa Maoody. Nonetheless,
the prosecution went forward with presenting at trial this unsubstantiated accusation in order to
prejudice Mr, Cummings in the eves of jurars, and to obtain murder convictions and death sentences

agamst Mr. Cummings based on unsupported and inadmissible “bad character™ evidence. The
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prasscution did not object when Mr. Commings moved for a directed verdict at the close of the

evidence, which resulted 1n the trial court dismissing that count (T, 853-56). Mr, Cummings was

prejudiced becauss the unreliable rape testimony was not otherwise admissible at erfal, and the
_prejudicial effect of that testimony cutweighed its probative value. Mr. Cummings was prejudiced

because 1t was impossible for the juroes to set aside and not consider Anita’s testimony regarding

2

those all=gations during their deliberarions.

126, The prosecution committed reversible error in refving on the alleged mpe of Melissa
duning closing arguments at the guilt phase {see, 2.g., T. 862, 869, 902 & 906) and the sentencing
stage (ree, e.g, T. 990, 991, 993-6) of Mr. Cummings® trizl. Given the unsubstantiated noture of
Anita’s allegations about the rape, and Shermy's testimony which was inconsistent with Anita’s
version and impeached her allegations, the trial court correctly dismissed Count 1. The prosecution
knew that and nonstheless intentionally relied on a rape allegation that should not have been
considered for any purpose.

127, The prosccution knew or should have known that Lahoma Yaws [1, the yvoungest cister
of Shermy Cummings and the only prosecution witness at the Sentencing Hearing, had a reputsiion
for lying, had been sexually active before the alleged 1991 rape, and had in the past accused her
mather's boyfriend of sexually abusing her then subsequently retracted that accusation. The

prﬂs&uutmn Imnmngl}r used testimony at trial that the prosecution knew or should h:u.'e ]-:nn:]w Wa5

unreliable and false, and.-‘ur the prosecution pms::nted the testimony of La.hnma "I"a'l.-rs ina false light
by keeping from the defense and jurors matenial information relevant to her reputation for
truthfulness,

128. The prosecution knew or should have known that the OSEI report regarding its
mterview with James Moody was inaccurate in falsely asserting that James Moady had told the
OSBI agent that Judy Moody had told James that Mr, Cummings was molesting her daughter. James
Meody never told that ta the OSBI 2gent, and Judy Moody never said that to James Moady {see

Appendix 34 & 7).
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129, The prosscution failed ta produce to the defense 21l information regarding all
interrogations and questioning of persons in this case by law enforcement eificers. By way of
example, defense counsel were not provided with information regarding interviews with Mr.
Cummings by Agen: Birchfield and others when Mr. Cummings’ ﬁ,:n:anted his false confessian.
Another example is the prosceution’s feilure to produce the audia tape ar any ather record of the
second tape-recorded interview of Mr. Cummings on July 20, 1994, Mr. Cummings gave two
scparate tape-recordzd statements to the authorities at Aiffercnt tienes that day: one at the Q5B
office in Antlers, and another in the Atoka County Sheriff's Office. Oaly the recording from the first
taped interview has been produced to the delensc to date. The prosecution knew or shauld have
known that a second tape-recorded stalement was laken from Mr. Cummings, but nonetheless the
prosecution has fail:d te produce that statement and police reports regarding it

130, The prasecution knew or should have known that State-wimess Timothy Chancellor
{aka Youngblood) had a prior felony record 2nd that he had been treated for mental health problems
which affected his memary (ree Appendix 27). This information was ralevant 1o his credibility and
the reliability of his tria) testimony. Monetheless, the prosecution failed to disclese this information
to defense counsel before or during inal.

131. The prosecution knew or should have know that witness Edward Fields was not a
reputable mm:ster and therafore represented him to the jury at rial as a minister im a false light, The

-pmser:utmn E:{pimi:d this ﬁ;1;1;n-pm551an in nrde-r_t; Lr;l-ster Anita Eummmg_.s“;:dfhm.l:}r b:;- Bt
implying Anita “confessed” to Mr. Ficlds in hiz capacity as a minister and hence was feeling
remorse for her actions, and henee must have heen telling the truth,

132. The prosecution knew or should have known Anita Cummings had never been married
before she married Jessic Commings, and that her first child was conceived out of wedlock with a
man to wham she kad never been married. By way of cxample, Anits acknowledged this in the
Custody Proceedings. Nonetheless, in reckless disregard for the truth, the prosecution stated in its
opeting statement at the guilt phaze of Mr. Cummings® trial Anita had a ¢hild by a previous
“marrizge” (T. 371 & 372).
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133. A major defect in the prosecution’'s case at trial is the absence of any motive by Mr.,

Cummings to want Judy or Melissa killed. Anita and Sherry Cummings testified that they did nat
know of any reason he would have to want Judy or Melissa dead (T. 341, 714). In order to fill in this
crucial gap in the State’s case, the prosecution knew or should have know that Anita Cummings was
influenced by one or more state agents to manufacture a claim that Jessic had sex with Melizsa
beﬂ;rc Melissa was killed. Anita did not embellish her confessions to the police with this claim unul
her July 30, 1994 Statement (Appendix 19), long afier her arrest and afier havingz been guestionad
numerous times. Similarly, Anita was induced by state agents to fabricate, months afier her arrest, a
false clair that Mr. Cummings had whispered in her ear a confession to having slit Melissa’s throat
(Appendix 17), despite telling palice in her initial statements she had never been given any
indication from Mr, Cummings” as to what happenad to Melissa, and that Anita thought he made
Sherry kill her {Appendix 19, p. 34),

134. The prosecution knew or should have known that Anita and Sherry Cummings had
never been disgnosed as suffering form Battered Woman Syndrome or any analogous form af
duress. The prosecution knew or should have known that the women's ¢laims of being dominated
and controlled by Mr. Cummings were not corrobarated by crediblz evidence, and there were no
medical records or police reports to cormrobomate their claims. The prosecution knew other people
had lived in the Cummings’ household, including Daniel Chick and Shirley Cunningham, and that
the Cummings’ house was frequented by many visitors on a regular basis, and that Anita and Sharry
were not kept isolated from the outside world. MNoenetheless, the prozecutor presented the testimony
of Anita and Sherry in a false light to convey the impression they were the victims of Battered
Women Syndrome or seme analogous fomm of duress.

135. The prosecution purposely misled the defense about its theory that Anita and Shemy
were battered women who acted out of duress in sclf-defense andfor to defend their children. The
prosecution did not have on its wimess list any mental health expert to testify about Anita andior
Sherry being battered women who acted out of duress. During opening statements, the prosecution

did not reveal that to be its theary, It was not until closing arguments the prosecution laid out its
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theary that these women were beaten into submission and were victims of constant fear through their

househeld. At that point it was too late for defense counsg] to appreciate the need to object to the
prosecution inferring that the women were battered wormen without any expert testimony or meesting
the criteria sct fnnh by this court in Becheaf v, State, 840 P.2d 1 (OkLCr. 1992).

124, The prosecution knew or should have known that State-witness Anita Cummings was
nqt::]ljng the trith when she claimed that Mr. Cummings had confessed to her, by whispening in her
ear during bondage sex, that he had stablbed and killed Melissa Moody. Anita did not embetlish her
accoent with thiz claim until just days before she testified at the December 1984 Preliminary
Heanng, which was over five months after her arrest (Appendix 17). Anna embellished her accounts
of the killings with this claimed admission apainst interest by Jessie in order 1o supply the
prasecotion with a motive for Jessie and as an attempt to provide some corraboration for Sherry’s
testimony, because Sherry claimed to be asleep and/or not hear anything when Melissa was killed.

137. The prosccution misrepresented to jurors during its opening statement at the goilt phase
that there would be evidence that Mr. Cummings told Melissz Moody, when he allegedly left his
home with her the day she died, that she was going to see her mother (T. 372).  The only testimony
offered was Anita saying that “somchody™ allegedly told Melissa that, but Anuta did not recall wha
(T. 704 & 748-9),

138. During arguments over a defense objection, the prosecution misrepresented to the trial
judge there would be testimony that Judy Mayo's body was dragged 1o the pond with her arms being
aut (T. 394). No such testimony was offered or presented at tnal.

139, The prosecution used evidence it knew to be false when it presented testimony Mr.
Cummings had called home the day of the offense by placing a phone call to the neighbor whe hved
acrozs the sireet from the Curmmings” home, Stella Knight. The prosecution knew of Stefla Knight
informed police no phone calls were received by her that day for anyoene at the Cummings’ hovse
(Appendix 31),

140, The prosecution failed to disclose to the defense the audio tapes seized from Mr,

Cumnmings® residence and/or house trailer which Mr. Cummings had made in 1991, during his
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133. A major defect in the prosecution’s case at trizl is the absence of any motive by Mr.

Cummings to want Judy or Melissa killed. Anita and Sherry Cummings testified that they did not
know of any reason he would have to want Judy or Melissa dead (T. 541, 714). In order 1o fill in this
crucial gap in the State's case, the pragecsution knew or should have know that Anita Cummings was
influenced by onc or more state agents to manufacture 8 claim that Jessie hed sex with Melizsa
h-:f;;re Melissa was killed. Anitz did not embellish her confessions to the police with this claim untit
her July 30, 1994 Staterment (Appendix 19), Jong after her arrest and after having been questioned
numerous times. Similarly, Anita was induced by state agents to fabricate, months after her arrest, a
false claim that Mr. Comimings had whispered in her ear a confession to having slit Melissa’s throat
{Appendix 17), despite telling police in her initial staternents she bad never been piven any
mdication from Mr. Cummings’ as to what happened to Melissa, and that Anita thought he made
Sherry kill her (Appendix 19, p. 34

134, The prosecution knew ot should have knawn that Anita and Sherry Comemings had
never been diagnosed as suffering form Battered Woman Syndrome or any analogous form of
duress. The prosecution knew or should have known that the women's claims of being daminated
and controlled by Mr. Cummings were not corroborated by credible evidence, and thers were no
medical records or police repotts to corroborate their claims. The prosecution knew other people
had lived in the Cummings” household, including Dianiel Chick and Shirley Cunningham, and that
the Commings' house was frequented by many visitors on a regular basis, and that Anpita and Sherry
were not kept 1snlated from the outside world, MNonetheless, the prosecutor presented the testimony
of Anita and Sherry in a false light to convey the impression they were the victims of Battered
Women Syndrome or some analogous form of duress.

135. The prosecution purposely misled the defense about its theory that Anita and Sherry
were battered women who acted out of duress in self-defense andfor to defend their children. The
prosecution did not have on its witness list any mental health expert to testify about Anita and/or
Shemy being bartered women who acted out of duress. During opening statements, the proscoution

did not reveal that to be its theory, Tt was not until closing arguments the prosecition laid out its
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theary that theze women werc beaten into submission and were victims of constant fear through their
household. At that point it was too late for defense counsel o appreciate the need to object to the
prosccution inferring that the women were battered women without any expert testimony or mecting
the criteria set forth by this court in Becheel v. State, B40 P.2d 1 {OR].Cr. 1992}

126, The prosecution knew ar shauld have kmown that Stare-witness Anita Curnmings was
n::n:r::-:]iing the truth when she claimed that Mr. Cummings had confessed to her, by whispering in her
ear during bosdage sex, that he had stebbed and killed Melizsa Moody. Anita did not cmbellish her
account with this claim until just days before she testified at the December 1994 Prelimnary
Hearing, which was over five months after her arrest {Appendix 17}, Anita embellished her accounts
of the killings with this claimed admission against interest by Jessiz in order to supply the
prosecution with a motive for Jessie and as an atempt to provide some corroboration for Sherry's
testimony, because Sherry claimed to be aslesp andfor not hear anything when Melissa was killed.

137, The prosecution misrepresented 1o jurers during its opening stelement 4t the guilt phase
that there would be evidance that Mr. Cummings told Melissa Maady, when he allegedly left his
home with her the day she died, that she was going to see her mother (T. 372). The only testimany
offercd was Anita saying that “somebody™ allegedly tald Melissa that, but Anita did not recall whe
(T. 704 & 748-9),

138. During arguments over & defense objection, the prosecution misrepresented to the trial
judee thers would be testimony that Judy Mave's body was dragged to the pond with her arms being
out {T. 384). Wo such testimony was offered or presented at tnal.

139, The prosecution used evidence it knew to be false when it presented testimony Mr.
Cummings had called home the day of the offense by placing 2 phone call (¢ the neighbor who lived
across the street from the Cummings” home, Stella Knight. The prasecution knew of Stella Knight
informed police no phone calls were received by her that day for anyone at the Curnmings’ hovse
(Appendix 31},

140, The prosecution failed ta disclose to the defense the audio tapes setzed from Mr,

Cummings’ residence andfor house railer which Mr, Cummings had made in 1991, duning his
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iterviews with varous persons regarding the deaths of Judy and Melissa. Those audie 1apes

contained material informaton, including an interview with somebody who had seen Sherry
Curamings at the Dairy Queen the night Judy was shat. That nat only impeaches Sherry's claim that
_she was a1 home all mght, it also points to Sherry going there to signal ta Amita that everything has
been taken care of in terms of disposicg of Judy and Melissa before Mr. Cummings retemed from
'Dklréh pma City that might.

141, The prosecution failed ta discloge to the defense sexually explicit photos seized from
the Cumnemings' household after the July 1994 arrests. Thase photos depict adults in sexvally explicit
pases, including Mr. Cummings' wives and ether women and men. Thase photos were relevant 1o
the women's credibility and identity of the person they recruiled to assist them dispose of Judy and
Melissa, and the photos should heve been produced during pre-trial discovery,

142 The prosecution commited misconduct dunag closing arguments at both phases af Mr.
Cummings’ trial. By way of example, the prosecution jmproperly argued at sentencing stage that
Mr. Cummings' had raped Melissa Moody (T. 980-292, 005-05). The evidence of thal rape was s0
insufficient at trial that the trial court directed a verdict against the State on Count I (T. 853).
Naonetheless, the prasecution asked jurars 1o believe the rape had taken place in deciding whether the
prosecution had proven beyoend a reasonable doubt the “continuing threal” apgravating eircumstance.

143. The death sentences in this case are tainted by the prosecution’s misstatement of the
facts during closing arguments at the sentencing stage. Defense counsel had made a proportionality
arpument to jurers based on Anita getting a Life sentence and Sherry a sentence of 35 years (T. 994}
The prosecution then incotrectly told jurors that Sherry was gefting 2 Life senteneze (T. 995).
Subzequent 1o Mr. Cummings’ trial, Sherry was given a 33-year sentance which was what had been
agreed to with the State prior to Mr, Cummings’ trial (Appendix 53).

144, The prosecution cngaged in misconduet at the sentencing hearing in arguing o jurors to

find the avoiding-arrest aggravating circumstance was proven by the alleged rape of Melissa Maody.
This was improper argument because Mr, Cummings had been found not puilty of the Child Abuse

count based on the alleged rape, and the prosecution knew their evidence was insufficient o
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ectablish that a rape had occurred in order for jurors to consider it.

145, Mr. Commings' Statement of Arguments and Authorities in Support of this Application

are sef forth in Addendum A, which is incorporated herein by reference.

IV. MR, CUMMINGS WAS DENIED A FAIR AN RELTABLE DETERMINATION OF

PPROPRIATE SEMNTENCE I s VIDEMCE 15
INSUFFICIENT TO SUPPORT THE AGGRAVATING CTRCTM STANCES,

' Claims for Reliel

146, Mr, Cummings was denicd a fair trial and a fair and reliable determination that death
is the appropriate sentence in this case, and is being denied a fair and adequate appellate review of
his death sentence, in violation of kis rights under the First, Fifih, Siath, Eighth and Fourieenth

Amendments 1o the United Statzs Constitulion, and Article 2, 882 3, 7,8, 19 & 20 of the Gklahoma

Constitution.
Facts in Support.

147. All other claims, facts and allegations in this Application are realleged and
incorporated by reference in this Proposition, as well as the information in the Addenda and
Appendix, and information t¢ be produced at an evidentiary hearing on this Application. Related
claims raised in Mr. Cummings' pending direct appeal are also realleged and incorporated by
refetence (see App. Brief, Propositions 6, 78, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14 & 13},

148. A death sentence in this case is manifestly unreasonable. It is the praduct of passicn,
prejudice and arbiteary factors, including discrimination an the basis of poverty and socio-ecanomic
clags. Ttis nat supported by the evidence. Itis not the result of a fundamentally fair tral proceeding.
It was not determined in a fundamentally reliable manner.

149. 1t is not possible to have confidence in the reliability of the outcome of Mr. Cummings’
trial because it was tainted by inadmissible, unrelishle, false and misleading, and prejudicial

evidence, examples of which are included herzin.
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150, NWewly discoversd evidence and evidence not previously available (sze Proposition 1),

ereate sipnificant residual doubt ahout Mr. Cummings’ role and participation in these offenses,
rendering unreliable the results at the sentencing stage of bis trial. Standing alene or f“ PIOpoTian

0 the zentences of Anita and Sherry, the death sentences for Mr, Cummings are not appropriats and
should be modified o a lesser sentence.

" {5]. At the scrtencing stags before the jury, trial counsel without Mr. Cummings® consent
conceded hiis zuilt for the murders in this case. Oty Mr. Cummings” could autharize his counszel ta
do that, and he did not, Me. Cummings never tald his counsel he participated in these offenses, but
rather has maintained his innocence all along. Tral coun se] canceding Mr. Cummings’ guslt was
incansistent with the facts as reported by Mr. Cummings’ and is the equivalent of perpetuating a
fraud on the jurors and the caurt.

152, There is no competent strategic reason for defense sounsel to have conceded Mr.
Cummings” guilt at the seatencing stage, One of the mitizating circumstances in this case was
residual doubt as to guilt (Instr. #8, OR 465). Conc eding puilt to the murders resultzd in a waiver of
fhat mitigating circumstance, which was one of the mast impartant ones in this case because thers
was no cvidence to corroborate the women's claims about Mr. Cumrnings' participation. In
addition, it is perfectly reasonable and acceprable for a trial attomey to acknowledge to jurors that
the defense respects their guili-phase verdicts even if counsel disagrees with it. Politely explaining
to jurors that the defense respects their guilty verdicts, and knows that jurors were conscientious in
ammiving at it, is an effective strategy 1o ask jurars o consider the possibility the women were in fact
lying and Mr. Cummings may not have done the things the wamnen claimed. It is the only reasonable
strategy in this case, becanse conceding guilt to two astensibly cold-blonded murders, including one
of a young child, and arguing proportionalicy was doomed to failure.

153. To make things worse, defense counsel during closing argument also concedad,
without Mr. Cummings® consent or advance knowledge, he had raped Melissa before she was killed
and had raped Lahoma Yaws Il when she was 14 years old (T. 993, 994). Mr. Cummings had never

told his counsel he committed either of thase rapes. At the Preliminary Hearing, the trial court had
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found the evidence insufficient 1o support the prosecution's oral motion to amend the Information

with a Child Abuse count based on the alleged rape of Lahoma Yaws (P.H.-1, p. 365-73). At the
eonclusion of the guilt phase at trial, the tra] judge pranted a directed verdict on Coutt I which
was premised on the rape of Melissa, In addition, there was considzrable evidence which could have
been use to zrgue that the rape of Lehama Yaws was 2 fabrication that Anila started, which Lahoma
mitgaﬂy denied but subseapently agreed to say happened, because Lahoma is Sherry’s vounger sister.
Lahema had never reparied the rape to the police. Despite Lahoma’s claim she became pregnant
and had & miscartzge, she had never seen a medical doctar.  Although jurors did not know this,
Lahoma had made sexual assault aflegations against her mother's boyfriend the month before this
alleped rape, which she recanted. Nor did jurors know that many of Lahoma's relatives do not even
belizve this rape ever happened, end they repart she was sexvally active leng before the alleged
incident,

154, Conceding two murders and two rapes was antamount to concedad the continuing-
threat aggravators in this case, Trial counsel are professionally probibited from making such
cencessions of guilt without the informed consent and advance knowledpe of their client. Trial
counsel are professionally prohibited from admitting guilt when the client has never admitted guilt 1o
them. There can be no reasonably competent strategic reason for admitting guilt under the
circumstances of this cass.

155. The death sentences in this case are tainted by the prosecution’s heavy refiance in
closing arguments on the unsubstantiated allegation made by Anita Cummings that Melissa had been
sexually assaulted by Mr. Cummings before her death (T.520-92, 9953-96). Once the trial court
dismissed Count IT] premised on that rape allegation (T. 833), trial counsel should have moved for a
mistrial a5 to the guilt phase and/or the sentencing phase. Trial counsel should also have filed 2
mation in limine poer to the sentencing phase to prohibit the prosecution fram relying on or making
any argumnents regarding that claim which had been made by Anita to bolster her duress claim, but

which was not corroborated by Sherry or any other evidence. There was insufficient indicia of

reliability as to Anita’s claim that Melissa had been raped by Mr. Commings for that claim to be
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admissible. Mareover, the prejudicial value of the weak assertion by Anita about the rape

substantially nutweighed its probative value, and should not have been considered by the jury ar
arpued by the prosesution. When the prosecution moved to incorperate at the sentencing stage all of
the guilt-stage evidence, trial counsel also should have ohjscted to incorporating Anita's testimony
sbout the allezed rape of Melissz, and asked jurcrs ta be sdmonished not to consider i, and the
pm:s&:mi-:m directed not to use it. Moreover, jurors chould have been given a jury instruction which
directed them nat to consider that evidsnce, and/or (o permit jurars 10 consider it amby if jurors found
sufficient evidence to comaborate the testimony of Anita, who was an accomplice to the alieged rape
(QUJ CR 9-25 - 9-32).

156. Mr. Cummings' death seniences Were tainted by the uncorroborated and unrelizble
allegation by Lahoma Yaws 11 {hat she had been raped by Me. Cummings in April 1991, while Anita
and Sherry Cummings supposedly held her down, which resulted in a pregnancy and misc arriape.
Iahoma is Sherry’s younper sister, and as <uch had a motive to testify falsely apainst Mr,
Cummings. Not only i3 there no evidence such @ Tape toak place, in the form of physical evidence, a
police repart or medical records, there is considerable evidence Lahoma has a reputation fot Jying in
general and for lying about being sexually molested in particular, and even close relatives and
friends believe she lied about being raped by Mr. Cummings (see Appendix 7 & 3E).

157. At the guilt stage of the trial, jurors were exposed o Anita's and Sherry's sell-serving,
uncarrobarated and unreliable allegations of spouse abuse and child abuse, and Anita's petjury when
she claimed she did not know that Mr. Cummings and Sherry were married when she mamed Mr.
Cummings. There is abundant preof that Anita knew this, including: Sherry's presence at the
wedding ceremony; Anita's claim to the contrary during a DHS home visitin 1994 (Appendix 43);
Shemry's concession to the undersigned counsel Anita lied about that; and many people reportitg
Amita had been living with Sherry and Mr. Cummings when Anita and Mr. Cummings got marmned.
M. Cummmmings® death sentences are partly the result of jurar disapproval of the bigamous
relationship he had with Anita, and many rumors cireulated in Coal County about the Cummings’

household, Ttis fundamentally unfair to hold it against Mr. Cummings he had a bigamous
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relationship with Anita and Shermy when jurors were unaware that the women were bisexual lovers

and they both encouraged this pluralistic marriage in order to be with each other.

158, Mr. Cummings’ death sentences are tainted by jurors prejudicss and inagcurate
stereatypes about Paor White Trash, and their lack of understanding of relevant information about
that socio-coonomic group (see Averment of Facts, Fart T, absve and Appendiz 4), and jurors®
e:-:pﬂnsur: ta rumnors and gossip rampant in Ceal County about the Cummings’ houschold,

159, Jurors were denied relevant and material information about Anita and Sherry
Cummings (see, e.g., Averment of Facts, Parts O, F & G, above). By way af example, jurors did no
inow they were bisexual lovers, which was material and relevant to thair motive to conspiTe Lo
frame Mr. Cummings. Jurars did not know Anita lied when she testified under cath she did not
know that Sherry and Mr. Cummings 2lr=ady were married when she marnied fom. They did not
know Sherry could hald her own in a fight with Mr, Cumnmings. See also, Averment of Facts, Pans
F & G, above.

160. Jurors were given the inaccurate impression Anita and Sherry Cummings were bartered
wives who were 2o dorninated and controlled by Mr. Curmmings they committed these crimes under
duress out of self-defense (see Averment of Facls, Part C, above, and Appendix §).

161, The jury verdicts with regard to sentencing were further tainted by improper,
incomplete, misleading and confusing jury instructions (see Froposition 6) and improper acts and
omissions of the trial court (see Praposition 5},

162, The continuing-threat aggravating eircumstance, on its face and as applied in this case,
is vague and overbroad, and failed to channel and guide juror discretion. In support of this
aggravating circumstance the prosecution relied on improper and irelevant information, meluding
infurmation that had a prejudicial effect which outweighed its probative value, including the alleged
rape of Melisza Moody and the alleged raps of Lahoma Yaws.

163. There was insufficient evidence to support the continuing-threat aggravator in this case.
The jury’s finding of the “continuing threat” appravating circumstance, and hence the balance of

ageravators with mitigators, was tainted by exposing jurots to improper evidence and innuendo
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zhout Mr. Cumnmings, and improper arguments by the prosecution.  This problem was caompounded

by the Jack of a proper limiting instruction to guide juror discration.

164. Juror discretion was not properly limited in the evidence to be cansidered in support of
this aggravator. By way of example, in questioning 2 witness the prosccution brought up Anita's
claim that it was not tnusual for Jessie to put kids in handeuffs (T. #82-3), Anite’s claim about the
usa’nfhandl:uﬂ':-‘. (T. 740) was directly contradicted by Sherry, wha had testified under oath none of
the kids had ever been handenffed in the house before Melissa was killed (PH-135). Moareover,
jurors did not know Anita’s hyperactive son Rabbie is the only child alleged to have had handcutis
used on hirn, and then only at bedtime after Robbie was discovered to have a sharp knife in his bed,
which caused concern he might burt somebody while the household was asleep.

165, There is na meaningful way to predict an individual's future dangerousness in the
prison sefting if given a LWOP sentence which reguires one to spend the rest af their life m prison.
Any competent mental health professional will acknowledge there are no tests or critena accepted
within their profession for measuring fuwre dangercusness. In fact, Mr. Cummings has made a good
adjustment to prison life and has not posed a danger, The use of the continuing threat aggravator in
this case is as standardless as reading tea leaves or flipping a coin. As a result, jurors are permitied
to base their decision on a purely emotional gut reaction 1o their biases and prejudices regarding the
value of the life of a barderline mentally retarded Poor White Trash male raised 1n poverty.

166. Ewven if there may have been some other admissible evidence to support this
ageravator, the prejudice 1o Mr. Cummings is not cured. Jurors weigh the relative weight of each
aggravating circumstance; and the “heavier” or more substantial a particelar aggravator is, the
heavier it weighs against mitigating evidence. Given that the jurors were provided a large ange of
evidence which should not have been properly considered in suppon of this aggravator, coupled with
an inadequate Hemiting and puiding jury charge, the jury”s finding of this aggravator must be vacated,
and a new sentencing hearing ordered.

167. The avoiding arrest agpravating circumstance, on its face and as applied in this case, 15

vague and overbroad, and failed to channel and guide juror discretion. In support of this aggravating
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circumstance the prosecution relied on improper and irelevant information, including in farmation

that had a prejudicial effect which outweighed its probative value, including the 2lleped rape of
Melizsa Moody and the alleged ape of Lahoma Yawa. u

168, The avoiding arrest aggravating circumstance is not supported by the evidence (see
].I:'rnpt:lE.[IECrn 1) and the jury charge at the sentencing stage failed to adeguately guide jurors’
dEs;rEtinn with regard to that aggravating circumstance (fee Proposition 3).

169, The death sentences in this case are tainted by the prosecution’s misstalement of the
facts during closing arpuments at the senlencing stage. Defense counsel had made a propartionality
argumsnl 1o jurors based on Anita gesting 2 Life sentence and Sherry 2 sentence of 35 years (T, 394),
The prasecution then incorrectly told jurers that Sherry was gerting 2 Life sentenee (T. #532).
Subsequent to Mr. Cummings' trial, Sherry was given a 35-year sentence which was what had Leen
agreed to with the State prior to Mr. Cummings’ trial {Appendix 33},

170, The death sentences in this case were tainted by Anita Commings’ {alse claim Mr.
Cummings® whispered 2 confession in her ear, several weeks after the offenses duning bendage sex,
about how Melissa had died. There is no evidence Mr. Cummings’ ever engaged in bondage sex
with Anita or any ather female. The undersigned Bas interviewed other sex panners who engaged 1n
gex with Mr. Cummings, with or without Anita present, and they refute Anita’s claims reparding his
engaging in bondage sex. In addition, Anita did not volunteer this embellishment on her version of
events until long afler her arrest, and it is clearly one maore example of her willingness to lie when
she perceives it to her advantage. This purported “whispered confession™ is even less reliable than
the infamous “dream confessions” used by unscrupulous police officers, because it comes so late
afier her arrest and because it does not comport with the physical evidence about Melissa's death.
She alleges he admitted to slashing Melissa’s throat to kill her, when the evidence at tnal was
Melisza died from four stab wounds to the chest and the autopsy did not find the presence of injurics
to the neck consistent with her throat being slashed {Appendix 13).

171. The jurars were denied relevant evidence regarding Mr, Cummings and his background

(see, e.p.. Averment of Facts, Part E, ghove]. By way of example, jurors did not know that his 1.0 is
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ahaut Mr, Cummings, 2nd improper arguments by the prosecutien.  This problem was compatnded

by the lack of a proper limiting instruction to guide juror discretion.

164, Juror discretion was not properly limited in the evidence 10 be considered in support of
this aggravatar, By way of example, in questioning a wimess the proszcution brought up Anita's
claim that it was not unusual for Tessie to put kids in handeuffs (T, 982-3). Anita’s claim abour the
usn::hnf' handcuffs {T. 740) was directly contradicted by Sherry, who had testified under eath none of
the kids had ever been handeuffed in the house before Melissa was killed (PH-I135). Morcover,
jurors did nat know Anita's hyperactive son Robbie is the only child alleged 1o have had handcuifs
used on him, and then only at bedtime zfier Robbie was discovered to have a sharp knife in his bed,
which caused concern he might hurt somebedy while the hausehaold was aslecp.

165, There is no meaningfal way to predict an individual's futere dangerousness in the
prison setling if given a LWOP sentence which requires one to spend the rest of their life in preson,
Any competent mental health professional will acknowledge there are no tests or cnitenia accepled
within their profession for measuring future dangerousness, In fact, Mr. Cummings has made a goad
adjustment to prison life and has not posed 2 danger. The use of the continuing threat aggravator in
this case is as standardless as reading tea leaves or flipping a coin. As a result, jurors are permitted
to base their decision on a purely emotional gut reaction to their biases and prejudices regarding the
value of the life of a borderline mentally retarded Poor White Trash male raised in poverty.

. 166. Even if there may have been some other admissible evidence to support this
aggravator, the prejudice 1o Mr. Cumemings is not cured.  Jurors weigh the relative weight of each
agaravating circumstance; and the “heavier™ or more substantial a particular aggravator is, the
heavier it weighs against mitigating evidence. Given that the jurars were provided a large range of
evidence which should not have been properly considered in supporn of this aggravator, coupled with
an inzdequate limiting and guiding jury charge, the jury”s finding of this aggravator must be vacated,
and a new sentencing hearing ordered.

167. The avaiding arrest aggravating circumstance, on its face and as applied in this case, 13

vague and overbroad, and failed to channel and guide juror discretion. In support of this aggravating
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circumstance the prosecution relied on impraper and imrelevant information, including information
that had a prejudicial effect which autweighed its probative value, including the alleged rape of
Melissa Moody and the alleged rape of Lehoma Yaws. J

168, The avoiding arrest aggravating circumstance is nol supported by the evidence (see
Il’mpusin' on 1) and the jury charge &t the scnizncing stapge failed to adequately guide jurors’
djsl;-]':t'iﬁl'.l with repard to that ageravating circumstance {se¢ Propasitian 3.

16%. The death sentences in this case are tainted by the prosecution's misstatement of the
facts during closing arguments &t the sentencing stage. Defense counsel had made a2 propocionalily
argurent to jurors bascd on Anita geting a Life sentence and Sheery a sentence of 35 years (T. 994),
The prosecution then incorrectly told jurars that Shemry was getting a Life sentence (T, 595),
Subsequent to Mr, Cummings” trial, Sherry was given a 35-vear senfence which was what had been
agreed 1o with the State prior to Mr. Cummings’ trial (Appendix 33).

170. The death sentences in this case were tainted by Anita Cummings’ false claim Mr,
Cummings’ whispered a confassion in her ear, several weeks afier the offenses duning bondape sex,
abaur haw Melissa had died, There is na evidence Mr. Cummings’ ever engaged in bondage sex
with Anita or any other female. The undersigned has interviewed other sex parmers who engaged m
sex with Mr. Cummings, with or without Anita present, and they refute Anita's claims regarding Ins
engaging in bondage sex. In addition, Anita did not velunteer this embellishment on her version of
events until long afier her amest, and it is clearly ane more example of her willingness to lie when
she perceives it to her advantage. This purported “whispered confession” is even less reliable than
the infamous “dream confessions” used by unscrupulous police officers, becanse 11 comes so late
afier her arrest and because it doss not comport with the physical evidence abaut Melissa's death.
She alleges he admitted to stashing Melissa’s throat to kill her, when the evidance at irial was
Melissa died from four stab wounds to the chest and the autopsy did not find the presencs of injuries
to the neck cemsistent with her throat beinz slashed (Appendix 15).

171, The jurors were denied relevant evidence regarding Mr. Curmnmings and his background

{see, e, Averment of Facts, Part B, above). By way of example, jurors did not knovw that his LO). 15
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E1, which places him in the barderline retarded range of intellectual functioning (Appendiz 3} Nor
were they provided with evidence that he Jacks the cognitive and intellectual sophistication (2
dominate and control others (id.), much less the independent and willful Sherry Curnrmpings and her
lover Anita Cunuﬁings_

172. Jurors were biased against Mr, Cummings by Apita Cummings' false testimony

—
fi

regarding Melissa’s inadmissible hearsay testimony she had engaged in sexual activities before in
Arkansas (T, 702). This allawed jurars to speculate thase sexual activirties were with Mr.
Cummings, when they were not. Jucors did not know Melissa’s father and brothers had molested her
older siblings, and they would be the mosl likely persons to have molested her (Appendix 7).

173, Jurors were prejudiced against Mr. Cummings due ta inadmissible testimony that he
had cast the county a good deal of money for his medical expenses (T.935-36), and the
prosecution’s innuende that Mr. Cumnings' was merely faking his iliness (T. 936). M. Curnmings
does in fact have genuine medical problems, including glaucoma (Appendix 45 & 46). However,
casts of medical care should not be a factor in determining who should live and who should die,

174. Mr. Cummings’ death sentence for the murder 1o Judy is disproportionate ta the
straight Life sentence that was given to Anita Cummings, whe is the admitted shooter and who
killed Judy while Mr. Cummings was out of town.

175. The trial court failed to meaningfully respond to the jury note about whether the greater
sentence would be served if two different sentences Werc imposed (T. 1004} This jury note 15
another varation on the numerous times capital juries have sent out notes inguiting abour the
meaning of Life Without Parale. Winle lawycrs experi enced with capital cases know LWOP means
what it says, Life Without Parale, jurors arc not sute of that and doubt it means what it says. Jurors
should have been instructed they should assume Mr, Cummings would serve the sentence handed
dawn on each count, whether they were the same or differcnt, that each sentencing option MEeans
what it says, and the harshest sentence would be imposed first if the sentences were different,

176. Another arbitrary factor infecting the sentencing in this case was Lahoma Yaws II

breaking dawn on the witness stand, being remaved from the courtroom, and collapsing in the
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haliway during the recess called when she lost her composure. To make things worse, Lahoma was

9 months pregnent at the time (she pave birth to a daughter about two weeks later).

177, The sentencing heznng in this case was fundamentally unfair beeause it commenced
only 20 minutes after the guilty verdices were announced (T. 913). A minimum of an over-night
;'i:l: es5 15 needed berween the guilt phase and penalty phase of a capital murder mal. This pravides a
mﬂ-lizig-ﬂﬁ“ pened within which the defendant can regain his composure afier the shock of being
found guilty. His family and other witnesses also necd time to deal with the stress of the guilty
verdicts before being asked to take the stend and publically lay bare family secrets, while still in
sheck aver the puilty verdicts. This explains why Mr. Cummings’ sister, Debbie Smith, was unzblz
to say very much while testifying about the extreme abuse inflicted on them by their mother (T, 037-
48} Defense counse] are generally warn aut by the time the puili-phase verdict is returned, and nead
time 16 collect their thoughts and organize witnesses. Jurars, loo, need time to remave themselves
from their guilt-phase deliberations in order 10 more objectively and dispassionately deal with 1he
life and death decision with which they arc faced at the sentencing stape.

178, The death sentences in this case are tainted by the tnal court’s improper exciusion of
evidence by denying defense pre-trial motions {see OR 152).

179, Itis fundamentally unfair for the prosecution 1o have used against Mr. Cummings his
lack of remorse, over a defense objection (see OR 150}, for having participated in these killings {T.
947-48) in light of the fact Mr, Cummings’ was maintaining his innocence and his defense was 2p
alibi, which is his constitutional right to maintain, This was an impermissible comment on Mr.
Cummings® right to not testify. A defendant cannot be required ta choose between two conflicting
constitutional rights, such as the right to maintain his presumption of innocence, the tight 1o remain
silent, and the right to a sentencing determination which is not tainted by inaccurate and misleading
mformation, Otherwise, every time a defendant maintains his innocence at the guilt phase, he is
subjecting himself to the peril of being aceused of lacking remorse at his sentencing, which iz a
fundamentally unfair and constitutionally intelerable choice.

183, Mr. Cummings is being denied a full and fair appellate review of his death sentences
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hecause the record on appeal does not contain material information relevant to this Court’s

sentencing review of direct appeal, and it containg inaccurate and misleading evidence that will

prejudice Mr, Cummings’ in this Court’s gentencing review. o

V. FINDAMENTAL ERRORS IN THE JURY INSTRUCTIONS DENIED
~ MR CUMMINGS A FAIR TRIAL AND A RELIABLE DETERMINATION
OF THE APPROPRIATE SENTENCE 1N THIS CASE,

laims for Relie
181. Fundamental ermars in the jury instructions in his case denied Mr, Cummings duz
pracess, equal proiection, a fair trial, a fair and reliahle determination that death is the appropriate
sentence in this case, and freedom from creel and vnusual punishment, in violation of his ophts
secured by the Fifth, Sixth, Eighth and Fou rteenth Amendments to the U8, Coostitution, and Article

2,582, 7, 9, 19 & 20 of the Oklahoma Constitution.

Faciual Contentions in Support

182. Al other claims, facts, and allegations in this Application are realleged and
incorporated by reference in this proposition, as well as the information in the Appendix, Addenda,
and information to be praduced at an evidentiary hearing on this Application. Related claims raised
in Mr. Cummings’ pending direct appeal are also realleged and incorporated by reference {see App.
Bricf, Propositions 3, 8, 11, 12, 14 & 15}

183. Tria] councel were inaffective in failing to ensure that Mr. Cummings’ jury was
instructad with complete, accurate and proper jury instructions.

184. The trial court had a duty to correctly and completely instruct the jury as to the
applicable law, and it failed to da sa.

185. The jury charges as a whole arc so vague, misleading, inconsistent and
incomprehensible as to encourage jurors to ignore them completely and vote on the basis af gut

feelings rather than on evidentiary proof.
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A. Defective Guilt-Phase Instructions

186. Jurors were given an inadequate, confusing and misleading jury instructifln regarding

. the meaning and effect of the tral court's dismissal of Count [H{T. 85 3} Count III in the Amended
Felony Informatics (OR 290-1) alleged in pertinent part that the de fendant willfully and

jm&sz[nnnl] v sexually abused MM, a minee child 11 years of age, by willfully or maliciously
committing lewd or indecent acts, including touching her body anc actual peneration of the child's
private parts. This was read to jurors at the commencement of the guilt phase (T. 264), Al the
conclusian of the evidence, this Coust was dismissed due to insufficient corroboration of Anila’s
self-serving allegations that this bad taken place {T. 855), However, the jury charge described a
totally different offense:

Child Abuse is the wilful or melicious injuring, tomunng, maiming or use of
unreasonable foree upon a child under the age of 18 by one under 2 legal dury to render aid ta the
child. At the request of the Defendant, and without objection by the State, the Court has found
a5 a matter of fact and law that the Defendant is Mot Guilty of the crime of COUNT 3 CHILD
ABUSE, has dismissed same, and you are sa instrueted. You should net consider this charge for
any purpese in vour deliberations as to COUNT 1 MURDER FIRST DEGREE in the death af
Judy Ann Moody Maye or COUNT 2 MURDER FIRST DEGEEE in the death of Melizsa
Moady.

{OR 388) {emphasiz added). This instnuction was inadequate to remind jurors that Count 111 had
been based on the alleged rape of Melizza, and failed to clearly inform jurors the alleged rape should
not be considered by them during their deliberations, This error was compounded by the prosecurion
repeatedly relyving on the alleged rape during closing arguments {see, e.g., T. B62, 869, 902 & 50a),
187. The guilt-phase final jury charge was defective in failing to provide jurars with
meaningful instructions regarding the prosecution’s theory that Anita and Sherry Cummings acted
under duress in participating in these offenses. It was undisputed that Jessie was in Oklahorma City
when Anita shot and killed Judy. The prosecution did not argue Jessie and Anita andéor Sherry were
co-conspirators, but rather Jessie had such control over Anita and Sherry that he overcame their will

such that they acted under duress in killing Judy and participating in the death of Melissa.

-130-



!
v W

188, Animperzni material finding of fact the jurors needed to make in arder ta convict
Tessie was that Anita andfor Sherry acted under duress in causing the death of Judy and Melissa.
Nonetheless, jurors wete not given a legal definition of duress, who had the burden of proving that
Anita and/or Sherry acted under duress, and what was that burden of proof. As a result, one or moe
jurars were misled to believe the burden was on Jessie to prove his defense that the women did not
act ;he duress of any domination by him.

189, Jessie was entitled 1o have the jury instructed an his theary of the defense, which was
not only an alibi but alse the women wers nat acting at his command under duress. Hence, the trial
eourt should have instructed jurors the prosscution had the burden of proving, beyond a reasonable
doubt that Anita acted under duress in shoating Judy, and that Anita and Shemy acted under duress
in their participation in the death of Melisza, and they must Tenm not-guilty verdicts if they do net
find 1he government met its burden of proof on this issue. The jury was not so instructed.

150, The jury instructions regarding the law of principals was hopelessly confusing and
unintelligible to a lay jury. Petitioner and his counsel did not have the funds and time necessary 1o
retain an expert in lingwistics in arder to obtain an expert’'s analysis of the jury instructions in
preparing this Application. However, Petitioner intends ta offer such expen opinion at the
evidentiary hearing on this Application.

101, In addition, on its face the jury charge i incomplete, inaccurate and conflicting with
regard to the law of principals and accomplices. By way of example, Instruction Mo, 7 {OR 352)
tells jurors that all “principals™ are equally liable for the commission of an offense, It then explains
there are two ways to be a principal: (1} 10 direstly and actively commit the “criminal act™; (2) 1o
“knowingly and with eriminal intent” aid or abet the commission of the crime. Mo further guidance
ar infarmation is provided regarding accomplice Yability options in this instruction, That [pstruction
also defines “criminal intent™ as committing acts whose probable consequences are criminal, which
constitutes an unconstitutional mandatory irrebutable presumption.

192. One or mate jurors could have incorrectly wnderstood this instruction in several ways,

One is that committing the “eriminal act” is something ather than all of the elements of first degree
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murder, and hence can be something less. Another 1mpraper interpretation is that an accomplice

only nzed possess general intent be convicted of fiest degree murder, regardless af the intent of the
person{s) he is an accomplice with regarding the offense. Hence, while the person th actually
¥illed Judy could be convicted of first desee murder based anly on the 5p erific intent of malice
aforethought, the accomplice could be canvicted -- and subject to the death penalty — based on a
!ﬂ:h‘ﬁ'ﬂf criminal, and merely general, intent. That produces the anaomaly of the prosecution having a
Jesser burden of proof with regard to the actual shooter than for the aider.

193, Thes= srructural errors in the jury charze reguire Mr. Cummings’ convictions to be

vacated and his case remanded for a new mal.

B. Defective e ina-Siaop v Cha

194, The jury charge 25 2 whole failed to properly channel and guide juror discretion,
thereby producing &n atbimary, diseriminatory andior capricious result, and a result that 15 pat free
from passion and prejudice.

195, The jury charge failed to instruct jurors they were limited to considering anly the
aggravating circumstances alleged in the Bill of Particulars by the State.

156. Jurors were given a vague and constitutionally inadeguate definition of “mitigaticn
circumstance” {Instr. No. §; OR 463), which precluded jurars from giving effect to mitigating factors
that exist in this case, That inscuction misled one or mote jurrs to believe that mitigation 18 limited
10 something that is directly related to the offense, such as matters which constitute a legal “excuse”
for the offense. Jurors should have been instructed they eould consider in mitigation any aspect of
Mr. Cummings' character or record, including those unrelated or only indirectly refated 1o the
offense, as well as any of the circumstances of the offense that in faimess and mercy should be
comsidered in support of a sentence less than death. Without 2 constitutionally adequate and
expansive definition of mitigating circumstances, one 0T mOore jurors were mislead to believe they
could not consider matters unrelated 1o the offense, such as Mr. Cummings’ disadvantaged

background, his lack of education, and his childhoad maltreatment by an alcoholic and sbusive
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197. The jury charge gave jurars complete and unlimited diseretion to determine what
constitutes a mitigating circumstance; “The Setermination of what are mitigation citcumstances 15
for you as jurors o resolve...” {inst No. 8, O.R. 465). This permitted ohe O MOTe jJurers o teflse

T

1o consider a circumstance which must be conatitutionally considered if proven Lo exist. Itisnat the
jur::rs‘ dury to determine what constiruies a mitigating cireumstance. Jurors are judges of the facts,
not judees of the law, Jurors shauld have been instructed they are 1o determine whether the
mitipating circumstances relevant to this case were proven to exist and, if so, what weight cach juror
individually believes should be given 1o each mitigating circumstance the jurer found 1o exssl,

19%. Jurors were tald 1o consider mitigation circumstances that “existed” (Instr. No, &, OR
465, & Instm. No. 9, OR 466). This mislzad one or more jurors ta freeze in time the day of the
offense what they would consider in mitigation, and i disregard mitigation gvidence based on pasi-
affens= evidence.

199, The jury charge misled ane or more jurors to believe that the death penalty cauld be
imposed if any aggravatng circumstance they found 1o exist outwe ghed any one of the rmitigating
circumnstances which existed in this case (Instr. Ne.9, OR 466). The jurors should have been
informed that they are required to balance the cumulative weight of the aggravating gitcumstances
proven to exist against the cumulative weight of mitigating circumstances, not weizh them one by
one. 22 051991, B701.11.

200, In explaining how to conduct the balancing of aggravators and mitigatars, jurors were
given an instruction that 15 incomprehensible and confusing Lo the average lay persan (Inscr. Ne, 2,
OR 466). Research on comprehensibility of languape shows that more grammatically complex
sentences are more difficult to process and understand than less complex ones. The number of
clauses embedded in a sentence contributes to difficulty in comprehension. Research also indicatas
that the maximum number of words creating optimum comprehensibility for the average person ia
thirteen words per sentence. The “weighing” instruction violates those precepts and is difficult to

decipher.
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501, Turors were nat infarmed they did not unanimaously have to find the existence of a

mitigating circumstance in order for it to be considered by one or mere jurars in the balancing
process. Further, juroes Wers pot 1old that 2 mitigating cirsumstance did nol have to be proven
beyond a reasonable dpubt in arder for it to be considered by one or more jurors. Based on the
totality of the instructions, one OF MOTE Jurers incorrectly assumed that “beyond a reasonable doubt”
was the standard of proof,

202. The jury charge included vagus, over broad, duplizitous and over-lapping aggrav ating
circumstances, and failed to provide jurars with a constitutionally limiting instruction regarding the
voontinuing threat” aggravatar and the “aygiding amest” agaravating circumsiance.

203. The jury charge failed to provide jurors with 2 constitutionally adequate definitien of
the “contincing threat” aggravating circumstance in this case (Instr. 6, OR 463). Hence, jurors were
given unrestmicted discretion 1o use character evidence and prior bad act evidence for improper
purpases in making their “continuing threal” determination. Mr, Cummirgs was particularly
prejudiced by this error because jurors were provided with an abundance of uncorroborated and
unspecific “bad character” allegations. 1o addition, the jury charge failed ta specify at what point
(i.e., at the time of Mr, Cummings' tral, not the day of the offense) the prosccution had to prove Mr.
Cummings to be a continuing threat,

204. The jury charge failed to provide jurars with a constinutionally adequate definition of
the “avoiding arrest or prosecution” aggravating circumstance in this case (Inst. 5, OR 462). Inorder
to Hmit the vague and aver broad application of the “waypiding amrest” aggravating circumstance, the
jury charge failed to inform jurors of the nature of the allegations the prosecution had to prove and
apainst which Mr. Cummings had to defend himsell. By way of example, the jury charge did not
specifi the separate offense the prosecution alleged was the basis far alleging this aggravator
regarding the death of Melissa Moody. For example, the jury had convicted Mr. Commings’ of

felony murder in the course of kidnapping. One or more jurors could have understood the jury
charge to permit tham ta use the kidnaping as the “separale offense,” which it was not. The trial

court had directed a verdict against the prosecution on Count 111 which was represented on Anita
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157, The jury chatge gave jurars complete and unlimited discretion to determine what
constimtes a mitigating circumstance: “The Jelermination of what are mitigation circurostances i5
for vou as jurors to resolve..” {Instr. No. &, O.R. 465), This permitted one of More JUrors o e fuse

T

to consider a circumstance which must he constitutionally considerad 1f proven ta exist. 1tis not the
jun;rs' duty to determine what constirates a mitigating circumstance, Jurors are judges of the facts,
not judies of the law, Jurots should have been insructed they are 1o determine whether the
mitigating circumstances relevant to this case were proven to cxist and, if so, what weight each juror
individually believes should be given 1o cach mitigaring sircumstance the juree found 1o exist.

108, Turors were told to consider mitigatian circumstances that “existed” {Instr. No. &, OR
465, & Ipste. No. 9, OR 466). This mislead one or more jurors to freeze in Ume the day of the
offense what they would consider in mitipation, and ta disregard mitigation cvidence kased on posi-
offense evidenca.

199. The jury charge misled gne or more jurors to helieve that the death penalty could be
imposed if any aggravating circumstance they found 1o cxist outweighed any one of the mitigacing
circumstances which existed in this case {Instr. Mo, OR 466} The jurors should have been
informed that they are required to balance the cumulative weight of the aggravating circumstances
proven ta exist against the cumulative weight of mitigating circumstances, not weigh them one by
one. 22 0.5.1991, §701.11.

200. In explaining how to conduct the balancing of aggravatars and mitigators, Jurors Were
given an instruction that is incomprehensible and confusing to the average lay person (Insto. Na. 9,
OR. 466). Research on comprehensibility of language shows that more erammatically complex
sentences are more difficult 1o process and understand than Jess complex ones. The numbser of
clauses embedded in a sentence contributes to diffienlty in comprehension. Research alse indicates
that the maximum number of words creating optimum comprehensibility for the average person is
thirteen words per sentence. The "weighing” nstruction violates those precepts and is difficult to

decipher.
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201, Jurors were nat informed they did nat unanimously bave to find the existence of a

mitigating circumstance i arder for it to be considered by one or mMate jurors in the balancing
process. Further, jurors were not told that = mitigating eireumstance did not have to be proven
beyond a reasomable doubt in erder for it to be cansidered by one or MOTE JUTDTS. Based on the
totaliny of the instructions, one o Mare jurors incotrectly aesumed that “bevond a reasonable doubt”
was the standard of proof,

202. The jury charge included vague, aver broad, duplicitous and over-lapping aggravating
circumstances, and failed 1o provide jurors with a constitutionally limiting insouciion regarding the
“continuing threat” aggravator and the “avoiding ammest” aggravating circumsiance.

203, The jury charge failed to provide jurars with a constitutienally adeguate definition of
the “continuing threat™ aggravating circumstance in this case {Instr. &, OR 463}, Hence, jurars were
given unrestricted ciscretion [0 use character evidence and prior bad act evidence for impropet
purposes in making their scontinuing theeat” determination.  Mr. Cummings was particularly
prejudiced by this ermar because jurors were provided with an abundance of uncotroborated and
unspecific “bad character” allegations, In addition, the jury charee failed ta specify at what paint
{i.e., at the time of Mr. Cummings® trial, not the day of the offense) the prosecution had to prove M.
Cummings to be a continuing threat.

204. The jury charge failed to provide jurors with a constitutionally adequate definition of
the “avoiding arrest or prosecution” apgravating circumstance in this case (Inst. 5, OR 462}, In order
to limit the vague and over broad application of the “ayeiding arrest” aggravating circumstance, the
jury charge failed to inform jurors of the nature of the allegations the prosecution had 1o prove and

against which Mr. Cummings had to defend himself. By way of example, the jury charge did not
specify the separate offense the prasecution alleged was the basis for alleging this appravator
regarding the death of Melissa Moody, For example, the jury had convicted Mr. Cummings’ of
felony murder in the course of kidrapping. One or more jurors could have understood the jury
charge to permit them to use the kidnaping as the “separate offense,” which it was not. The trial

court had directed a verdict against the prosecution on Count 111 which was represented on Anita
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Cummings’ unsupparted allegation that Melissa had been raped, Despite the insufficiency of the
evidance as to that alleged criminal act, one or more jurars could have und erstood the jury charge to
permit them to use that as the separate offense, cven though there was insufficient cvidance 1o prove

it had taken place.

205. The jury charge failed to provide adequate information regarding the three sentencing
ﬂpuf ons, and in particular the option of Life Without the Possibility af Parole [LWOP], despite a
defense mation for the same (see OR 119 & 431, 432, 413). As will be shown at the evidentiary
hearing oo this Application, it is a commen misperception among lay people, including the jurors in
this cass, that LWOP does not mean a person will spend the rest of his life in prison. Thisisa
misperception fostered by the media and statements of prosecutars that are quoted in the media. The
average person is unaware the Oklahoma Constitution would have to be amended before a prisoner
serving a LWOP sentence could be released. A canctitutionally adeguate LWOP instruction is
necded particularly in cases such as this whers the pro secution is relying on a future dangerous
argument in support of its request for a death sentence.

206, Jurors were told that all previous instructions given at the first part of Mr. Cummings’
trial "apply where appropriate,” but were not given any guidance in determining what instructions
were appropriate to consider (Stage 1 Instr. No. 11, DR 433).

207. The jury charge failed to inform jurors what would happen in the event they wers
unable to reach 2 unanimous verdict. (QUJI CR 4-83}.

20%. Mr. Cummings’ Statement of Arguments and Authoritics in Support of this Application

are set forth in Addendum A, which is incorporated herein by reference.
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VL. THE ACTS AND OMISSIONS OF THE TRIAL COURT DENIED MR. CUMMINGS

HIS FUNDAMENTAL RIGHTS, 4 FAIR TRIAL. AND A FAIR AND RELIABLE
DETERMINATION OF THE APPROPRIATE SENTENCE.

Clai Relie

209, Mr. Cummings was denied his fundamental ights, 2 fair trial, a fair and relizble
sentencing determination, and duz pragess by improper treatment of evidence, timproper evidentiary
rulings, 2nd ather improper conduct, in vialation of the Fifth, Sixth, Eighth and Fourteenth
Amendments to the 1.5, Constitetion, and Article 2, 582, 7, 9, 19 & 20 of the Oklahoma
Constitution.

Factyal Contentions in Support

210. All other claims, facts, and allegations in this Application are realleged and
incorparated by refersnce in this proposition, as well as the information in the Appendix, Addenda.
and information to he produced at an evidentiary hearing cn this Applicatien. Related claims rzised
in Mr. Cummings’ pending direct appeal are also realleged and incerporated by reference (see App.
Brief, Propositions 1,2, 4, 5, 6,7, 8, 11, 12, 13, 14 & 13}

211, The trial court commirted fundamental errors in its improper mlings, in failing o natice
and eorrect errors affecting Mr. Cummings’ substantive and fundamental rights, and failing sua
sponte to take appropriate corative action to proteet Mr. Cumimings’ rights when the circumstances
made it appropriate and necessary for the trial court to do so, and in its other improper conduct at ns
trial.

212. The trial court erred in failing to ensure that the jurors who sat on Mr. Cummings® jury
were properly qualifisd to serve in this case. During jury selection, the tnial courl did not ask
questions of the jury poal to determine if everyone met all of the statutary and constitutional
reguiremnents for service on this jury. As a result, one or more jurors who rendered the verdicts at
Mr, Cummings’ trial was not qualified to serve {(sec Propasition 7).

213, The trial cowrt had a duty to limit the scope and amount of prejudicial uncorroborated

evidence admitted at trial, including inadmissible bad character and prior bad acts evidence. Before

-136-



b 0 pessany 0 bemmaw  Weabeen

%
o i

exposing jurors to some of this evidence, the trial court Sug sponie should have held a heanng out of
the presence of the jury to determine whether the prosecution would sustain its burden of prool oy a
preponderance of the cvidence that these incidents had in fact accurred, .
- 214, The trial court failed to admonish and instruct jurors to disregard Amnita Cummings’
testimony regarding the alleged rape of Melissa Moody in light of the trial court’s dismissal af Count
In ::3'[ the conclusion of the evidence (T. 855} and in light af the abzence of any cormuboration that
such a rape had taken place. While the wial court did instruct jusors to disregard Count 11 (Inst. 3,
OR 388), the jury was told only to disregard the meharge”, not the uncorrobaraied evidence admitted
in support of it. Tn addition, that jury instuction defined "Child Abuse™ in terms different from the
elements of Child Abuse as alleged in the Second Felany Information which was tead ta juroecs at the
commence of the case. Henoe jurors fziled to understand they were haing instructed to disregard the
evidenes of the alleged rape.

915, The tria] court failed ta sug sponte grant @ mistrial when it dismissed Count III, A
mistrial was necessary to cnsure that Mr, Cummings had a fair trial because there was no way jUrors
could disregard Anita Cummings® testimony regarding the alleped rape of 11 year-old Melissa
Moody. Mot only was the alleged rape uncorrobarated by Sherry or other evidence, Anita’s claims
were inherently improbable in light of the other evidence and what now is known about Melissa (see
Averment of Facts, Part D, above). Whatever peripheral probative value Anita's testimony about the
alleged rape may have had, once it was found to be insufficicntly reliable to sustain the prosecution’s
burden of proof, that probative value was substantially outweighed by its prejudicial effect.

216, The trial court erred in permitting Caunt 111 to go to tnal in the first instance, because 1t
was foreseeable from the testimony at the Preliminary Hearings that Anita's testimony regarding the
alleged Child Abuse was not going to corroborated by sufficient evidence for that count to go 1o tha
jury,

217. The trial court erred in sustaining objsstions by the prosscution at trial. By way of
example, the trial court sustained an objection during trial counsel's closing arguments which

precluded trial counsel from arguing inconsistencies between Anita's trial testimony and her pre-trial
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statement to the police (T. E80). Since Anita had been confronted at trial, dunng eross examinztion,

with the inconsistencies in her pre-trial statement, counsel was arguing facts in evidence 10 refeming
to the statement, and shauld nat have been precluded from making that argument.

218 The wial court erred in avermiling defense objections at trial. By way of example, the
trial court overruled the defense abjection to Lahoma Yaws IT testifying at the penzlty phase (T.

91 5_; see also OF 99].

219, The rrial coort failed to rake necessary steps to pratect Mr. Cummings’ nght fo a
sentencing determination free of passion, prejudice or any arbitrary factor. By way of example, the
trial failed to take appropriate curative action, including declaring a mistoial, when State-witness
Lahoma Yaws II broke down on the witness stand, making it necessary 1o take a recess, and then
collapzed in the hallway within the view and awareness of jurers (T. 927},

220. The mal court crred 21 the .nu:mmn:{ng stage before the jury 10 granting the
prosecution’s metion to incarparate all of the evidence from the first phase of the trial (T. 922). Az a
result jurors were allowed to consider the uncorroborated festimeny of Anita about the alleged rape
of Melissa, despite the fact that Count ITI, which was based on that alleged rape, had been dismissed
due to insufficiency of the evidence (T. B35).

221, The tral court erred in denying the defense requests 1o sever Count [ from Counts 11
and I (T. 16-17). The rwo homicides were wnrelated in time, manner, metive and alleged
accomplices. There is no evidence of any comman scheme or plan on Mr. Cummings’ part with
respect to these homicides, because there was ne motive for Mr. Cummings to want either his sister
or his niece dead. The joint imial on these counts anly resulted in a confusion of the 1ssues and the
evidence in minds of the jurors, and the prejudicial effect to Mr. Cummings far outweighed any
interest the State may have had in a joint mal.

222, The trial court emred in denying the defense Motion to Quash or Dismiss (OR 187 &
202} based on the sufficiency of the evidence, and in denying the defense demur to Counts I and 11,
because the prosecution had failed to sustain its burden of proving beyand a reasonable doubt that

Mr. Cummings was puilty of either of these homicides (see Proposition 1, above).
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993, The trial cour failed to cosure that Mr. Cummings’ jury was instructed with complete,
acpurate, clear and proper Jury instructions.

794, The trial court erred in denying a defense requestio oregent evidence ﬂ:gjil’d:ing the
meaning and effect of a LW (JF sentence (see, ez, OR 132),

225 Mr. Cummings’ Statement of Arguments and Autharities in Support of this Application

are cet forth in Addendum A, which is incorporated herein by reference.

VviI. MR CUMAMINGS' JURY WAS [MPROPERLY CONSTITUTED WHICHIS A
STRUCTURAL ERROR REOUIRING REVERSAL AND 4 NEW TRIAL.

Claimy for Reliel
226, Hewly discovered evidence nat previpusly available shaws that one of the jurors who sat
on Mr, Cummings’ jury thal was nat qualified to serve on the jury, in violation of his nights eoder the
Sixth, and Fourieenth Amendments to the United States Constitution, Article 2, 6E19 & 20 of the
Oklahoma Canstitution, and 28 0.5,1991, §91 1,and 28 O.5,1991, §18.
cin ntenti in Support
297, All other claims, facts, end allegations in this Application are realleged and incorporated by

reference in this proposition, as well as the snformation in the Appendix, Addends, and information to he

produced at an evidentiary hearing on this Application.

228, One of the jurors wha sat on Mr. Commings’ jury was Sandra Shores. At the time of
Mr. Cummings’ trial, Ms. Shores was a 21 year old resident of Poatotos County living in Ada,
Oklaharna, where she worked at the lacal ¥o-Mart. Prior to that she had done an intermship with the
Probation and Parole office in Ada while studying for a degree in Criminal Justice at East Central
University (Appendix 7). Because Ms, Shores was not 2 resident of Coal County at the time she
presided at Mr. Cummings® trial, his jury was not praperly constituted and his convictions must be
reversed.

295, The fact that Ms. Shares was not qualified to serve on Mr. Cuminings’ jury was not

Imown until recently. Because the trial court failed to conduct 38 proper ingquiry inta juror
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qualifications, this fact was not known at trial and toal counsel never became aware af it. The
undersigned counsel have had insufficient time to contact all of the jurors, 1t is possible that other
jurors alsa were not quatified and should not have decided this case, given the trizl court"s failure to
guestion the jury pane] to ensure they afl were qualified to it in this case.

230, Under the laws, starates and constitution of the State of Oklahoma, Mr. Cummings was
£n Lil]ed to & jury consisting of 12 persons residing in Coal County, where he was mied, and was
entitled to 8 unamimous verdict of 12 residents of Coal County, The lack of qualifications of one af
these jurors effectively reduced his jury to 11 gualified eounty residents, That would have required a
mistnial if known at the time of the jury's verdict, and now requires that his convictions be vacaied.

231, There was no indication prior ta now that Ms. Stone was nat 2 resident of Coal County. Hence,
there was na reasan for mial counsel to have ohjected 1o her at trizl on that basis. Moreover, appellate
counse] was anaware nt.‘an}' facts ta put him on notice that inguiry should have been made mntoe this joror's
residency. That information was leamed by happenstance when the juror voluntested the information to
post-convistion counsel wha had called her 1o ask 2o unrelated question,

232, The presence of a unqualified jurerc at Me. Cummings’ trial was a structural defeet going
to the mial mechanism. As a result, it cannot be said that a unanimous jury verdict of 12 qualified jurars
was rendered in this case.  This issue renders moot all other claims asserted in this Application and in
Mr. Cumminps’ pending dircct appeal. Mr. Cummings' convictions must be vacated and this case
rernanded for 2 new mal,

233, Mr. Cummings' Statement of Arguments and Authorities in Support af this Application

are set forth in Addendum A, which is incorporated herein by reference,

Claim for Relief
234. The laws, statutes, court rules and jurdsprudence of the State of Oklahoma and the United
States with respect to the appellate and collateral review of capital-murder convichons and death
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sentences, as applisd to Mr. Cummings, are depriving him of a meaningful and adequats corrective

process, mezningful and effective assistance of caunse] during collateral review and on direct appezl.

due pracess, equal protection, and a full and fair review of the constitutionality ef his tonyvictions and

semtences, in violation of the Fifth, Sixth, Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments to the Linited States

Cofistitution, and Article 2, §§2, 3, 6,7, 9, 10, 19 & 20 and Art. 5 E44 of the Oklghoma Constitutian.
acts jn Support.

235, Al other claims, facts and allegarions in this Application are realleged and incorporaled
by reference in this proposition, as well as the ol armatian in the Appendix and Addenda, and
information to be produced at an evidentiary hearing on this Application.

236, Mr. Cummings is being denied an adequate appellate and collateral review process and a
fiall and fair review of the eonstitutionality of his conviction and death semence through the passage and
application of the Post-Conviction Frocedure Act, 77 3.5.1995, §1089 and the Rules of the Cour of
Criminal Appeals. The appellate and collateral review process available ta Mr. Cummings in the State
of Oklahoma fails to pravide him with a meaningful and adequate opportunity to investigate, develop
and present ail facts, matters and issues relevant to the constitstionality of his conviction and death
sentence.

237 Effective November 1, 1995, Oklahoma's Post-Conviction Procedure Act [the “Amended
PC Act™], 22 0.5.1995, §1980 ot seg., 2nd the Rules of this Court [see Rule 2.7, Rules of the Court of
Crirninal Appeals] wers amended to accelerate the collaterat review of capital-murder convictions, This
accelerated process requires an expedited review of capital cases which is different from callateral
review in non-capital cases.

238. The Amended Act also limits the scope of issucs that can be raised for review on the
merits in post-convicton procesdings. 22 0.5.1991, §§1989(C) & (D). Thess provisions on their face
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and as applied by this Court deprive Petitioner of a constitutionally adequate review of violations of his

Sixth Amendment rights to effective assistance of counse] at trial and on direct appeal.
235, Decisions of this Court construing the provisions of the Amended Act dud the Rules of

1111-3 Caurt af Criminal Appesls have applied them in a conflicting, inconsistent and contradictory
mariner, such that there now exists a procedural maze which cannot be deciphered by a reasonably
competent sitomey. The application of the new requirements in those decisions 10 the msiant
Application and Mr, Cummings’ pending direct appeal unfairly results in the imposition of new and
adverze legal consequences to decisions made by Mr. Cummings and his appellate counsel without
adequare netice and a meaningful oppenunity te comply-

240, Decisions issued by this Court impose on direct appeal new and unconstitutional quantinies
and gualities af proaf with regard to claims of ineffective ass.ismnr.‘e of trial and appellate counsel.

241. The Amended PC Act on its face does not reguire appellate counsel to engage in fact
finding outside the direct appeal recard, 22 0.5 Supp.15%3, §1083(D)(4)(b}{1}. Monctheless, this Court
appears lo now require appellate counsel to raise on direct appeal all claims of errar, and facts in
support, related to ¢laims of ineffective assistance of trial counsel that the Court deems “available™,
despite the fact that the information was not physically part of the direct appeal record. In other waords,
thizs Court appears 1o impase on appellate counsel a requirement (o engage in 2 wide-ranging factual
investigation of the case well beyond the appellate record as defined by Rule 1.13(F), Rules of the Court
of Criminal Appezals. This new rule was announced without adequate notice and apportunity for Mr.
Cummings to comply with it, and it is an unrealistic 2nd unreasonable burden, and amowunts to a denial
of due process, equal pratection and adequate access to the courts.

243, At all pertinent times the Capital Direct Appeal Division of the Oklzhoma Indigent
Defenze System ["OIDS”] has not had the resources, time or access to discovery to engage in an
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adequate and competent investigation outside the record on appeal (see Disclaimer). In order 1o keep

up with that Division’s heavy caseload, thers is a [imited amownt of time that can be spent warking on
a particular case without infringing on the time available 1o work on cases of other cliets. In addition,
t[l':a Division's budget for investigative and expert expenses 15 woefully madequate. A reguirerment that
diréct appeal counsel perform cxtra-record investipaton amounts (o a dental of effective assistance of
counsel on direct appeal, particularly when such a requirernent is announced afier the fact.

2431, The heavy workload and lack of resources at OIDS results in inherent conflicts af interest
with regard to how OIDS* sparse resopurces are allacated. When an attomey has msufficient time,
resources and money to competently and adequately represent all clients assigned to bim, then choices
have to be made. Those choices place counse] in an untenable and unethical position of having to use
time and resources needed to represent some clients in order (o provide them to other clients.

244, Duc to these inherent conflicts of interzst at OIDS, appellate counsel in this case was
required to forego the kind of investigation outside the direct appeal record that this Court now appears
to require under the Amended PC Act. In addition, this Court now requires such an investization
without having provided adequate notice to Mr, Cummings and his appellate counsel to meet those
Tequirements in this case.

245, Appeilate counsel for Mr. Cummings did not have the tims and resources to engage ina
wide-ranging exma-record investization of ail of the facts and circumstances pertinent to this case that
has been the traditional role of post-conviction counsel in the State of Oklahoma. In addition, appellate
counsel did not have access to discovery and compulsory process in order to secure information in the
possession of persons who are uncooperative and unwilling to voluntarily provide mmformation. Az a
result, appellate counse] were unable to properly preserve as emor mernitorious jssues affecting Mr,
Curnmings' fundameantal and substantive statutory rights.
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2446, Given the circemstznces of appellate counsel's represeniation af Mr. Cummings, facts

outside the record filed with this Court on direct appeal which suppert the claims in this Application src
facts that were outside the scope of information available to appellate counsel at the time of Mc.
L:fumm[nga’ dirzet appeal. However, should this Court find that such facts were "available” as defined
by this Court’s new decisions, appellate counsel’s represemation of Me. Curnmings was deficient due
to counsel’s fanlure to make a reasonabls investigation and in failing 10 make reasonable decisions with
regard 1o the investigative needs in this case.

247. In addition, OIDS” Capital Past-Conviction Division [the “CPC Division™] and the
undersigned counsel have been unable to pravide Mr, Cummings with 1dequate, campetent and conflict-
free representation. At all times relevant to undersigned's representation of Mr. Cumminazs, OIDS has
been burdened by a backlog of cases.

248, Due to the ﬁ]ing deadline 1n 1his case and the caseload at OIDS, there are numerous
individuzls with knowledge relevant to this case that the undersipned post-conviction counsel did not
have the time and resources to contact, There is legal research that was not pursued. There are recotds
that were not obtained and reviewed, Affidavits and other documents in support of this Application
were not developed. Due to lack of funds, there are experts that could not be consulted that showld have
been consulted, including an expert on the effects of Jong-term use of Percodan: and zn expert an
“cantinuing threat” issues, including the conditions of confinement in the Oklahoma Department of
Corrections.

249, Mr. Cummings is being denied an adequate, fair and raliable post-convicticn pracess
because there is no adeguate and meaningful mechanismm for discovery needed in 1 ght of the unigue
factal circumstances of this case (see Addendum B)., While there is a right to file with a post-
conviction application a request for leave ta conduct diszavery, that right is illusary, This Court has
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never granted such a request. In the collateral review context, this Court kas limited discovery requests
to izsues chellenging compliance with tral court discovery orders. This Court had stated that discovery
requests filed in advance of a post-convicton application are “premature”, and has stated that discovery
motions are o be filed with a petitioner’s post-conviction application, not before. As a result, Mr
Curhnings has been denied access to material information relevant to his factual moocence in this caze
and his innocence of the death penalty,  In addition, this Courd imposes on a petitioner an obligation ta
shaw by clear and convincing evidence that discavery is needed before a discovery reguest will be
granted. That standard is so unrealistically high that it can rarely if ever be met. I 2 petibioner
possessed sufficient information to meet the standard for showing the need to oblain discovery, that
information would essentiaily render unnecessary the discovery sought. In additien, even if'a petitioner
were granted discovery after his application was filed, he would be unable 1o usc the matenal
discovered, because thers is no raechanism for Mr, Cummings to amend or supplement this Application.

240, There is a nead for discovery and an evidentiary hearing in this case (see Proposition 1
& Addendum B). Nenetheless, Mr, Cummings does not have meaningful access to discovery or an
cvidentiary hearing in this post-conviction procesding. Unless this Court remands his caze to the
District Court for an evidentiary hearing, Mr. Cumnmings doess not have access o subpoenas duces tecum
or any other form of compulsory process to obtain relevent information in the possession, custody or
contro] of uncooperative, hostle or adverze persons. By way of example, Anita Cummings claimed at
trial that she had been abuzed by Mr. Cummings during five years of marrage to him. During that time,
Anita had frequent contacts with dectors and other health care practitioners. The undersigned is unable
to access her medical records to rebut Anita’s self-serving claim of abuse without subpoenas to third
parfies t0 product them to the undersigned. The undersigned has also attempted without success o
obtain the DHS records for the children who lived in the Cummings' household, and needs an order from
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this Court to obizin those recards, which are relevant to rebut Anita’s and Sherry’s claims about

treatment of those children. Another example of relevant recards and irformation that are not aveilahle
without a court order ar compulsary discovery are records perlaining to fethal injection executions in
the Siate of Oklahama.
~ 251, This Application is being filed at this time because Mr. Cummings bas run aut of
extensions, and it would be futile to request additional time, This Application i3 nat being filed at this
time becavse the investigation and r:s;:ar:h needed in thiz ease is complete, or because the undersigned
has had an adequae opportunity (o research, prepare and write this Application. Many wilnesses weare
not intervicwed that should have been. Many relevant records wers not reviewed or sguzht that showld
have been, Significant leeal research has not been undertaken that shauld have been. This Application
and the Addenda zetzched to it were written without adequate time to ensure that every relevant factual
and legal contention have bezn included. Given the complexiny of this case, coupled with the litnited
resources available at OIDS while it wes being prepared, Mr. Cummings is not being accorded a full and
fair review of all facts and issues relevant to the constitntionality of his canviction and death sentence,
252. Mr. Cummings’ Statement of Arguments and Authorities in Suppart of this Application
are set farth in Addendum A, which is incorporated herein by reference.

B OKLAHOMA® TENCY ME ON FA M AFPT ENTES
il /CED PE’

£1nims for Relief

253, Oklahoma's clemency process denies Mr. Cummings substantive and procedural due
process, equal protection, and a fair and reliable determination of the appropriateness of clemency in
his case, in vinlation of rights guarantced by the Fifth, Sixth, Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments ta the
United States Constitution, and Article 2, 582, 7., 9, 19 & 20, and Asticle 6, §10 of the Oklahoma
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Constiturion.

Factual Conteptinns in Support

254 AT other claims, facts, and aflegations in this Application are realle ged ard incorporated
b reference in this proposition, as well as the information in the Appendix, Addenda, and il'lfl:-l.'.";'l atian
ta be produced a1 an evidentiary hearing on this Application.

755, In the event Mr. Cummings is not granted relief on his challenges agamst the validity of
bis convictions and sentence, he is naw, and will be, by the time that judicial review af’ convictions and
sentences has been comnleted, an appropriate candidate for the Gavernar to excroise his power to grant
clemency by commuting his dezth seatence to a sentence of Life, with or without the passibility of
parnie.

256, By way of example, Mr. Cummings is the father of rwo daughters whe, alang with Mr.
Cummings® other celatives, will be permanently raumatized by the gn.vemm{:m putting hir to death.
Mr. Cummings has been a made] prisoner and he does not present a danger to the prisoa society in
which he wil] live for the rest of his Tife. Mr. Cummings is borderiine retarded and has low intzllectual
functioning. Nonethelzss, he has many skills and talents that can be put ta good vse in the prison
society, including his exceptional mechanic skills in repairing vehicles. Thers is considerable residual
doubt gbout his puilt, and clemency will prezerve his 1ife until accumate evidence surfaces to prove his
innacence,

257, Deficiencies in the clemency process in the Stzte of Oklahoma will deny Mr. Cummings
a full, fair and meaningful review of the appropriateness of clemency in his case.

258, Thers do=s not exist in the State of Oklahoma meaningful rules, procedures, critenia and
stendards to guide the discretion of the decision makers in the clemency process.

259. The clemency pracess fails to provide mezningful and adequate notice of what 12 required
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in order fo obtain clemency, and hence denics a meaningful opporiunity to be heard.

260. The clemency process in Gklaharma is paliticized ta the point of rendenng it & meamngless
ritual devoid of any semblance of due process.

I 261. The Governor of the Siate of Oklahoma has repeated indicated that he will not consider
erahting clemency in any capital case, and hence he has prejudged Mr. Cummings and his case for
clemency, thereby denying him of 2 fair and impartial decision maker.

262. Mr. Cummings' Statement of Arguments and Awihorities in Support of this Application
arc sct forth in Addendum A, which is incorporated herein by reference.
X THE DEATH PENALTY CONSTITUTES UNNECESSARY CRUEL,

ANDVOR UNUSTIATL PUNISHMENTS.

Claims for Eeliel

261 The execution of the death penalry in this case constituies unnecessary cruel and‘or unusual
punishment, in violation of the Eighth and Fourtecnth Amendments of the United Staces Constitution,
and Art. 2, §2, 7, 9 & 20 of the Oklahoma Constimution.

Facts in Support:

264, All other claims, facts and allegations in this Application are realleged and incorparaied
by reference in this proposition, as well as the information in the Appendix and information to be
produced at an evidentiary hearing on this Application,

265. The Eighth Amendment of the United States constitution is applicable to the State of
Oklahoma’s decision to use the death penalty as a punishment.

266. When the death penalty is an option for punishment, it must either be imposed fairly, and
with reasonable consistency, or not at all. The death penalty is imposed in the State of Oklahama, in
the United States and in this case unfairly, unreliably, without adequate procedural safeguards, and with
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Constitution.

Factua]l Contenfions in Support

254, All other claims, facts, and allegations in this Application are realleged awd incorporated
by reference in this proposition, as well as the information in the Anpendix, Addenda, and infuﬁ aiian
to be produced at an evidentiary hearing on this Application.

255 Tn the event Mr, Cormmings is not granted telief on his challenpes against the validity of
his convictions and sentence, he is now, and will be, by the ame that judicial review af convictions and
sentences has been campleted, an appropriate candidate for the Governar 1o exercise his power to grant
clemensy by commuting his death seatence to a sentence of Life, with or without the possibility of
parcle.

256, By way of example, Mr. Cummings is the father of two daughters whe, along with Mr.
Cummings’ other relatives, will be permanently raumatized by the government putting him 1o death.
Mr. Cummings has been a mode] prisoner and he does not present 2 danger to the prison society in
which he will live for the rest of his fe, Mr. Cummings is borderine retarded and has low intellectual
functioning. Nonctheless, he has many skills and talents that can be put ta good use in the prnison
sociery, including his cxceptional mechanic skills in repairing vehicles. Thers is considerable residual
doubt about his guilt, and clemency will preserve his 1ife until accurate evidence surfaces to prove his
mnacence,

257, Deficiencies in the clemency process in the State of Oklahoma will deny Mr. Commings
a ful), fair and mezningful review of the appropriateness af clemancy in his case.

258, There daes not exist in the State of Oklahoma meaningful rules, procedures, criteria and
standards to guide the discration of the decision makers in the ¢lemency process.

259. The clemency process fails to provide meaningfil and adequate notice of what is required
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in order 1o abtain clemency, and hence denies a meaningful oppartunity to be heard.

260, The clemency process in Oklahama is politicized ta the point of rendenng it 2 meamngless

ritual devoid of any semblance of due process. %

| 261, The Govemor of the Sate of Oklahoma has repeated indicated that he will not consider
eratring clemency in any capital case, and hence he has prejudged Mr. Cummings and his case for
elemsncy, thereby denying him of 2 fair and impartial decision maker.

' 262. Mr. Cummings' Statement of Arguments and Awthorities in Support of this Application

are set forth in Addendum A, which is incorporated herein by reference.

X: THE DEA

|

TH PENALTY CONSTITUTES UNNECESSARY CRUEL
INTISTIAL JSHMENTS.

| Claims for Reliel

263 The execution of the death penalry in this case constitutes unnecessary cruel and‘or unusual
punishment, in violation of the Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments of the United States Constitution,
and Art. 2, §2, 7,9 & 20 of the Oklahoma Constitution.

0 Suppn

264. All ather claims, facts and allegations in this Application are realleged and incorparated
by reference in this proposition, as well as the information in the Appendix and infoemation to be
praduced at an evidentiary hearing on this Application,

265. The Eighth Amendment of the United States constitution is applicable to the State of
Oklahoma's decision to use the death penalty as a panishment

266, When the death penalry is an opdon for punishment, it must cither be imposed fairly, and

with reasonable consistency, or not at all. The death penalty is imposed in the State of Oklahoma, in
the United States and in this case wnfairly, unrcliably, without adequate procedural safeguards, and with
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arbitrariness, discrimination, and capriciousness,

267. The death penalty is cruel and unusval punishment in this case, because of the defiziencies
in the proceedings which produced Mr Cummings's death sentence, which render his'convietion ard
ul:lr:ath sentence unfair and unrslishle,

268, No deterrent purpose can possibly be served by the execution of the sentence of dearh with
such iregularity and such infrequency, The imegulanity and infrequency of executions demonstrate that
the death penalty is unnecessary as a retributive device and is inconsistent with societal standacds of
decency.

260. Executions set socially sanctioned examples of and provide an inducement to vialence, and
do nat serve any legitimate state purpase in decreasing the: number of homicides,

270. The process by which jurors and judges are asked to decide whether a death sentence
should be imposed results in psychalogical trauma and the infliction of emotional stress an Jurors and
judges.

271. There is no penal purpose served by the execution of Mr. Cummin gs which 15 not more
effectively, less expensively and more efficiently served by a sentence af life with ar without parole.

272. Before Mr, Cummings can be subjected to & death penalty, the State of Oklahama must
EXercise great care to be certain the methed of imposing the punishment keeps to a minimum any risk
factors, including the risks of needless pain, violence to the inmate, or mutilation of his persan. A
punishment sanctioned by the State which invalves toruring the condemned inmate, or forces the inmate
to endure a painful, Hogering death is an unwarthy goal of a civilized society,

273, Exccution constitutes unnecessary cruel and unusual punishment, beeanse the State of
Okdahoma cannat professionally carry out the execution of a sentense of death without unnecessarily
inflicting torture and pain vpon the condemned prisoner.
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274, The death penalty as acmally imposed in the State of Oklahoma, in the United States, and

in this case, constitutes the purpessfess infliction of pain and suffenng unjustified by any vahid stace

Inleresc

275, Unless respondent can minimize the risk af unnecessary pain and suffering by t:ﬂ.{{ng all
feasible measures w reduce the rsk of error associated with the administration of capital punishment,
the state would not be conducting a constitutional act of executing Mr. Cummings.

276, Persans sentenced te death in Oklahoma are to be executed by means of lethal injection,
22 05,1991, £1014{A).

277. Lethal injection iz an unconstitutional method of execution without any proceducal
safepuards to prevent prolenged and intense pain and suffering.

278, The exacution af death sentences by lethal injection ig a tarturaus, inkoman and cruel
procedure. Even when properly conducted, lethal injection invelves the infliction of excruciating pain
on the individual executed.

279, Victims of lethal injection die of asphvxiation and hear failure. Ewven when persons
executed by lethal injection are first paralyzed, 1t has not been demonstrated that they become
unconscious of their pain and their impeding death.

280. The Oklahoma Department of Comections has not adopted rules and procedures for the
implementation of executions by lethal injection which adequately safcguard against botched executicns.

281. 22 0.5.1991, §1014, gives discretion to the Deparmment of Corrections and the Warden
regarding its implementation, and fails to guide and limit their discretion in many imporiznt respects.
By way of example, the statute fails ta provide any guidance or limitation as to; what Iethal substanees
can be used and in what dosages and in what combination; the criteria for making those decisions; the
manner in which the lethal chemicals are to be used; whe will inject the lethal chemicals into the
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arbitrariness, discrimination, and capriciousness,

267. The death penzlty is eruel and unusual punishment in this case, because of the deficiencies
in the proceedings which produced Mr Cummin £5's death sentence, which render hisconviction and

death sentence unfair and unreligble.

" 268, Nodsterrent purpose canp possibly be served by the exscution of the sentence of death with
such iregularity and such infrequency. The imegularity and in Tequency af executions demonsirate that
the death penalty is unnecessary as a retoibutive device and is incansistent with sacietal standards of
decency.

26D, Execulions set socially sanctionsd examples of and provide an inducement to violence, and
da not serve any l=gitimate state purpose in decreasing the number of homicides,

270. The process by which jurors and judpes are asked to decide whether a death SEnlence
should be impased results in psychological trauma and the infliction of emotional sress on jurars and
Judzes.

271. There is no penal purpose served by the exzcution of Mr. Cummin Bs which is not more
effectively, less expensively and more efficient] ¥ served by a sentence of life with or without parole.

272, Before Mr. Cummings can be subjected to a death penalty, the State of Oklahoma must
©XErCise greal care to be certain the method of imposing the punishment kesps 16 a minimom any dsk
factors, including the risks of nesdless pain, violence to the inmate, or mutilation of his person. A
punishment sanctioned by the State which involves torturing the condemned inmate, or forees the inmate
1o endure a painful, lingering death is an unworthy goal of a civilized society.

273. Execution constitutes unnecessary eruel and unusual punishment, because the State of
Oklahoma cannot professionally carry out the execution of a sentence of death without nnn=cessas] ¥
inflicting torture and pain upon the condemned prisomer.
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274, The death penzalty as actually imposed in the State of Oklahoma, in the United States, and

in this case, constitutes the purpossless infliction of pain and suffenng unjustibied by any valid staee
Interesc. .

275, Unless respondent can minimize the rizk of unnecessary pain and suffening by taking all
feasible measures to redoee the osk of error assoctated with the administration of capital punishment,
the state would not be conducting a constitutional act of executing Mr. Cummings.

276. Persons sentenced 1o death in Oklahoma are to be executed by means of lethal injection,
22 05,1991, §1014{A),

277. Lethal injection is an unconstitutional method of execution without any proceducal
safeguards to prevent prolenged and intense pain and suffering.

278. The exscution of death sentences by lethal injection is a tormraus, inhuman and cruel
procedure. Even when praperly conducted, lethal impeetion involves the infliction of exeruciating pain
on the individual executed.

279, Victims of lethal injection die of asphyxiation and heart {falure. Even when persons
cxecuted by lethal injection are fimst paralyzed, it bas not been demanstrated that they become
uncenscious of their pain and their impeding death.

280. The Oklahoma Department of Comections has not adapted rules and procedures for the
implementation of executions by lethal injection which adequately safeguard against botched executions.

281. 22 (,5.1991, §1014, gives discretion to the Depariment of Corrections and the Warden
regarding its implementation, and fails to guide and limit their discration in many important respects,
By way of example, the statute fails to provide any guidance or limitation as to: what lethal substances
can be used and in what dosages and in what combination; the critera for making those decisions; the
manner in which the lethal chemicals are to be used; who will inject the lethal chemicals into the
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canvicted person; what training and experience is required of the persons who will inject the substances;

what equipment is 1o be used; what procedural safegu ards are required to ensure the equipment and
11:&-.511 chemicals are stored, handled and used correctly. -

282, Due to the absence of appropriate written rules and statutory limitatdons on the use of lethal
injéction as a form of execution, there are inadequate sa fepuards and precautions in existence against
the many ways in which death by fethal injection can be mcamp etently administered, therehy resulting
in a cruel, unuseal and inhumane death.

283. Mr. Cummings is being denied his dus process rights to notice and an oppartunity to ha
heard with respect to whether an exccution by [ethal injection comports with the United States
Canstitution, the Constitution of the S1ate of Oklahoma, and ather apphicable law,

284, 22 (0.5.1991, §1014, does not preclude the wse of untrained and/or improperly skilled
persans fram performing the lethal injection, The administration of a lethal inj=ction by untrained or
unskilled persons greatly incraases the risk of unnecessanly severs physical and/or mental pain and'or
the possibility of a botched execution,

985 The risks of an unnecessarily painful exccution are greatly due to the failure of 22
0.5.1591, §1014 ta set farth, and the fajlure of the Department of Corractions and Fespondznt to adont,
any minimal training standards for those persons performing lethal injections, or to require that
medically qualified persons prepare and administer the lethal chermicals.

286. Another factor that creates a high risk of unneeessarily severe physical andfor mental pain
and/or the possibility of a botched execution is the failure of 22 0.8.1991, §1014, the DOC and
Respondent to provide for adequate equipment to be used for cxecutions by lethal injection, and the

failure to provide for personnel trained in the use of that eguipment.
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2E7. Other factors 2150 create a high risk of unnecessanly severe physical and‘or mentzl pain

and‘or the passibility of & botched execution, including the improper choice of 1) the acteal chemicals
to be used; 1) the dosages of each chemical; 3) the combinetion of chemicals; 4) the order and timing
of the administration of the chemicals. Improper storage andfor handling of the chemicals zlsa areatly
incfeases the rsk of negating the chemicals effectiveness, thersby preatly increasing the sk of
unnecessanly severe physical and’or emotional pain or the chance of an unsuccessivl execution.

28E. For example, an improper doze of the chemicals used, or an improper combination of
chemicals, greatly mncreases the nisk that the candemned persan will be paralyzed, conscious and under
severe physical and'or cmotional pain prior to death, or in lieu of death. If the chemicals lose potcney
as a result of improper sterage andfor handling, the chemicals will not work properly, This results in
a misk of a failed execution, and the condemned person will suffer a preatly increased sk of
unnccessarly severe pam. Improper administmation of the LY. catheter greatly increases the fsk that
the chemicals will be absarbed far more slowly than intended, impeding or negating the intended e fTect
of the chemicals, and greatly increasing the risk of unnecessarily severe pain and the possibilicy of a
failed exccution.

285. The absence of safeguards and precautions against deliberate cruelty or neglipence in his
execution has and will cause him additional mental anguish and anxicty that an execution by Jethal
injection will prolong or increase suffering.

290, Lethal injection is a method of execution in which negligent or intentional errors can cause
the person executed prolonged and intense suffering, In many instances of execution by lethal injestion,
the onset of death has been prolongad and pajnfusl,

221. A significant number of the persons executed by lethal injection in other states have
suffered cxtremely painfil and prolonged deaths due to the incompetence of the PETSONS CATTYINE out
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the executions end incompetent procedures which are subject to misadminismation ot maladministration,

Pased on eyewimess accounts of such sxecutions, coupled with available scientific evidence reganding
the hazards of lethal injection, lethal injection is a0 inherently unreliable method of executing persoms.

202 Ipformation regarding botched sxecutions by lethel mmjection are attached hersto in
Apfendix 4% and incorporated by reference. See also, Denno, Deborah W2 “Getting 1o Death: An
Eighth Amendment Apalysis of Execution Methods” 82 JTowa Law Review {December 19961, Appendix
1.C.; Radelet, Michacl L., upgst-Furman Botched Executions,” htip/fwnam 8es entizl.orefdp!
botched.him,

293, It is unknown what lethal substances will be used by Respondent 19 £XECuis Mir.
Cummings. Lethal injection drugs by their very nature, however, 212 &x tremely hazardous and can cause
complications, even when administered commectly. Hence, an execulion by lethal injection cxposes Mr.
Cummings o substantial and grave risks of pralonged pain and cxtreme infiictian of pain if the drugs
are not correctly administersd.

204, Causing death by lethal injectan constitutes the wanton inflection of extreme mental and
physical pain and suffering, and is cruel and unusval punishment.

265, There are more humane and less unreliable methads of execution available today which
are niot prone to the failures inherent in using lethal injestion.

206, There is a substantiz] risk that the injection of lethal substances inta Mr. Cumrnings's bady
will cause himn to suffer extreme physical pain and psychological torture, will r=zult in a prolonged and
lingeting death, a death which 15 unnecessarly cruel and wantonly unusual. Such a death i3 inconsistent
with the evolving standards of decency that mark the progress af a maturing society.

267, In the event lethal injection is held to be an unconstitutional method of execution, then a
sentence of death shall be carried out by clectracution. 27 0.5.1951, §1014(B).
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208, In application, Oklahoma uses an electric chair o electrocute persnns pursuant ta 27
{.5.1991, §1014(B). Death by electracution in the electric char also presents thz hazard of 2 slow and
painful death, constituting wantan tarture in excess of the means necessary to extingnish human lifs.
! 299, The alectric chair is an inherently unreliable method, of executing persons sentenced
deafh. 1t is a method prone to error, Historically the use of the electric chair has been charactenzed by
repeated failures to execute swifily. See Glass v. Lowisiana, 471 U5, 1080, 1089 (1985] (]. Brennan
dissenting from denial of certiorani). There have been many hormfymg episodes resulting from human
errar and neglect, The numerous incidents of mechanical failure and human error are evidence of the
inherent problems with using an electric chair to execute people. Usc of the electric chair fails to satisfy
the statutory requirements that the current of electricity be continuous and of "sufficient intcnsity to
cause death."
300. There are numerovs documented executions by electrocution that have been “botched”,
A recent incident invelved the botched execution of Pedro Medina in the State of Florida on March 23,
| 1997. The electracution of Medina caused flames to shoot from his head for ten seconds. At the
| evidentiary hearing on this issue, evidence will be presented with respect to botched executions in
Oklahoma and in other states.
301, Based on this pattern of malfunctioning of the electric chair, it is foreseeable that an
electric chair will malfunction again. A punishment is censtinutionally offensive if it involves the
foreseeable infliction of suffering. When there are repeated malfunctions or operational errors, it is

appropriate to consider whether an elemant of cruelty exists within the chosen method of carrying out

an already barbaric practice, at least in the eyes of a majnrif;,' of our world's civilized governments. The

State of Oklaboma is incapable of assuring that the execution of Mr. Cummings will be camed ot

itk ]

professionally in such a manner that it will not unnecessanly inflict torture and paimn.
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102, The mandate of federal law under the Eighth Amendment of the United States constimtion
must be examined by what has previously been described as “the evolving standards of decency” of our
population. In interpreting ite applicability, cours must recognize flexibility and moprovement in
I.r.ta.n.:lards of decency as spciery progresses and marres as refl acted by attitudes of contemparary sooier
andcomparative law.

105, Legislation is an objective indicatar of contemporary values that can be relied upon in
determining when a punishment has become cruel and unusual. There i 2 growing national cansensis
that killing peaple by means of clectracution is creel and unusual punishment. Most states that formerly
authorized the use of the electric chair have enacted Jagislation to use alterpative means of execution.
Of the thirty-cight states and junsdictions that have statutes authorzing the death penalry, only a small
minority permit the use of elactrocution to carry outd death sentence.

304, The United States is the enly country in the world that uses electrocution 10 carmy oul
government-sanctioned death sentences.

105, Euthanasia of animals by electrocution 15 not permitted in this country, ot any other
civilized country of the world, becouse of the likelihood that killing animals by electrocution results in
extreme sutfering.

406, Al the evidentiary hearing on this issue, Mr. Cummings will present expert testimany af
nationally recognized neurescientists wha study the brain and are knowledgeabls concerning the ciects
of electricity on the nervous system. These eXperts are of the opinion that intentional clectrocution by
means of the electric chair is probably intensely painful

307. In re Kemmler, 136 U.S. 436, 10 5.Ct, 930, 34 L.Ed. 519 (1890), is the decision on which
all cases rely in upholding electrocution by using the electric chair as a constitutionally sound means
of execution. However, the precedential value of Kernmier has eroded for a number of reasons. First,
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Kemmier was decided in 1890, before anyone had been executed using an electric chair, Henee, there

was no facmozl basis on which to determine how it would function. In addition, courts no longer defer

to state legislatures the way the New York state courts and the United States SupremeCouri deferred

It.;. the MNew York iceisiadon in Kemmler. Morcover, Kemmier applied a "beyand doubt” standard that

exctution in the electric chair was nol croel and unusoel, while today courts apply & preponderance of

the evidence standard for 8th Amendment claims. Furthermiore, scientific knowledge and technology

have made preat amides since 1880, and the electric chair must now pass scrutiny by current standards.

308, The legal conclusions in Kemmler ace still sound. Pumshments are cruel when they imvalve

"tortur= or a lingeong death.,” 136 1.5, at 447. However, the key facteal assumplions made by the

Kemmler court — that electrooution does nol involve tormure or a lingering death -- is nol cormmect, Hence,
this Court is not bound by Kesmmler 1o uphold electracution in Oklahoma's electne chair,

309, With the assistance of knowledgeable experts, Mr. Cummings is prepared to prove what

modern science now knows about electrocution in the electric chair, This knowledge includes, for

example, the excruciating pain suffersd by the persons being execuled as they acmally bum and cook

! during the electrocution process. In 1850, "expens” were unaware of this phenomenon. 1t was alzo

presumed that the inmate was instantly unconsciovs as the elecmeity was applied, an assumption which

!I Mr. Commings's experts have shown to be false. Qur understanding of electneity was in its imfancy in

late 19th century, and medical science has advanced exponentially over 100 years. The constiiutianality

of Oklahoma's electric chair now must be serutinized using the available modem body of knowledge,

310. Electrocution in an elactric chair involves passing electrical current through the human

body until the condemned person is dead. In 1890, this method was heralded as providing an

instantaneous and himane method of execution. Owver 100 years of history, scientific advancemeant and

motal development have superseded that judpment. It is neither instantaneous nor painfess, but mather
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it is tantzmount to being cooked alive.

311. Electrocution thersfore harkens back ta the barbarous practices of boiling in oil and
burmning at the stake, both of which were outlawed by the adoption of the Eighth Amendment,

I 312. The amount of electrical current (mmeasured in amperes or amips) applied to ths condemned
persan depends on the amount of vollzge generated and the resistance {measured in ohms) offersd by
his body. This follows from Ohm's law that voltzge equals current multiplied by resistance, a corellary
of which is that current equals valtape divided by resistance. 1{the voltage applied to a resistor 15 too
great, the resistor will bumm aut ar =xplode.

313, The objective in executing a person in an elecmic chair is to kill him without causing his
body to explode. The condemmned person iz strapped into the chair at the arms, trunk and legs, and a
mask is placed aver his face to shield witnesses fram the seeing on his face the effects of the current,
The pergon 15 equipped with a diaper due (o the effects of the slectrical charge on bis bladder and
bowels. One electrade is applied to the condemned person's head, which has been shaved. A sponge
soaked in a brny solution is placed between the head and the elecrode. The head’s electrade 15 o pass
current against the scalp and the sponge is to secure the contact and theoretically 1o slleviate buming
of the scalp, and the brine is to improve the conductivity of the sponge. A sccond electrode is placed
on ane of the subject's lega.

314. The continuous and repeated application of electricity 0 a conscious human bady is
extremely painful. To apply electmncity in such a manner intentienally would constitute cruel and
unusual punishment within the meaning of the Eighth Amendment. Therefore, the avowed objective
of the State of Oklshoma iz to pass sufficient current through the body and brain of the condemned
person to render him brain dead, or at least instantaneousty uncenscious, without vnduly disfiguring the
body, However, no one knows the amount of voltage needed 1o render the person instentzneously
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unconstious. The taw of the State of Oklehoma leaves it up to the Warden or his designee 1o determnins
the ameunt of voltage to use.

: 315. Physical size and apparent strength are not reliable indicators of physiclogical resistance.
Wa testing is done to deterrmine the resistance of the bady of the person ta be electrocuted. Hence, the
Watden or his designee must guess at the arount of valtage ta apply to the condemned person.

316. The humen skull is a very poor conductor of electricity, Human skin is also a poor
conductor, but sweat on the cutside of the kin is an excellent canductor, given that it is cssentially saloy
warer. It is foresecable that mast if not all persons strapped inta an electric chair to be exccuted will
sweat.

317. Flectric current seeks the path of least resistance, Therefore, a far greater portion of
clectrical current passes along the prisoner's skin than through his skull, body and brain, as it travels 1o
the clectrode on his lep. Hence, despite the voltage applied, refatively little current goes thraugh the
prisoner's brain, As aresult, the condemn ed person's skin is bumed at extrems [EMpPEraures while he
is awake and conscious for an indeterminzte petind.  Pholos of persans excculed in elecinic chairs
demanstrate the bums that i1 is foreseeable an electric chair will inflict severs bums on the prisoner.

11%. Because it is medically and seisntifically certan that death by electrocution 15 nat
insizntaneous, the condemned person Telaing CONSCIOUSNESS long enough to feel pain. ln order for
consciousness ta be lost, ar nerve sensitivity desmoyed, the electrical current would have to penetrate
the brain. The resistance berween the owo clectrodes and 1he brain is very high compared with the
resistance of the skin wetted by perspitation coniaining water and salts. By comparing the electncal
activity recorded on the surface of the scalp {the electroencephalograph), only 1/20th to 1/10th of the
voltzge penerated in the brain can penetrate to the outside (the scalp). Thersfore, a similar preportion
of the valtage applicd to the outside of the scalp from the electrode during electracution will penetrate
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ta the brain. The remainder will pass acToss the skin to the other electrade.
119. The heat generated by the passage of current across the body eventually brings the Blood
to a boil, and results in the brain heing cooked, The prisaner ultimately dics fram asphyxia and cardiaz

arrest.

~ 320, Autopsics of men excented by electraciition bear witness fo the extensive extamal bums
to the head, while the internal organs reveal that the brain is far less affected than the skin by the
application of the current during the execotion. The bums appearing inside the scalp are small compared
with thoze to the skin.

171, Sufficient current can be applied to 2 human being to kill him instaniangon sly. However,
the amount of current would be so great that {he body would be very badly bumnt and might well
explode.  Although it is widely believed that the persan being clectroculed loses conscicusness and the
sensation of pain as soon as the electracution starts, there is no scientific evidence 1o suppart this belief.
Because the nervous and motar systems of the body are scparate, the muscles can be renderzd immaobile
while the nervous system retains its ability to regisier pain,

174, During the application of electneity, the condemned person’s RECVAUE Eyslem and brain
remain relatively intact, allowing him to fec] pain. His muscles, however, are fully contracted by the
clectrical shock. Thus the prisaner canmot teact by any furither movement, even when the current is
turned off for a short peried and the heart 15 slill beating. [t is usnally thought that the failure of the
convict to mave is a sign that he cannot feel. Although the prisaner i5 paralyzed, he can still fecl the
pain.

323, This involuntary contraction of the condernned person's museles itself cavses intense pain.
Afler he lurches forward with the initial jolt of electricity, he cannot move, because all of his muscles
are contracting maximally, but he can stll feel the indescribable pain inflicted by the electrical current

-150-



traveling over and through his body.

324, The pain experienced by condemned persons wha are exsculed in an eleciric chair is
evidenced by:  third-degree bums to the flesh; drooling and vomiting; defecation-and urination;
Ié:nnvulsinm; grimaces and dilated pupils.

® 325 Due to the pruesoms and homific aspects of electrocwtion, Mr. Cumimings and ather
condemned prsoners facing elestracution suffer extreme psychological, emotional and physical distress
and anxicty prior to being excouted. Trop v. Dulles, 356 U5, 86, 78 5.Ct. 550, 2 L.Ed.2d 630 (1958)
{analvzing the extremne psychological anxiety and distress of a punishment in determining that it was
unconstitutienal).

326. The technolopy of electrocuting people by admimsiening jols of eleetaeity externally to
the head is antiguated. The State of Oklahoma and Respondent cannot know and eannot demonstrate
that the condemmed person 15 rendered unconscions by the first jolt of clecimeity. The State of
Oklahoma and Respondent are aware of numemous botched executions, both within the State of
O%lahoma and in other states. The State of Oklahoma and Respondent are aware that the use of the
electric chair has resulted in grucsome exccutions causing the condemned persons fo die prolonged,
lingening, agonizing deaths, as observed by eye-witnesses and reflected by the phvsical evidence, See
Denpno, Deborah W, "Is Electrocution an Unconstitutional Method of Execution? The Enpineenng of
Dizath Over the Century." Wm. & Mary L.Eev. Vol. 33: 531 (1994),

327. The operating and testing procedurss of the State of Oklahoma are pomitive znd
antiquated. Moraover, elecrracutions in Qklahoma's electoc chair wounld be neceszanly be carred out
by persons without appropriate expertise and training.

32%. Thers are more humane and less violent methods of execution available today which are
not prote to the failures inherent in using the clectmic chatr. Many states have abandoned electrocution
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on humanitarian grounds.

329. Inthe event electrocution is held uncm.jsrjtut[cunﬁl., then a sentence of death shall be earded
out by firing squad. 22 G.E.1991, §1014{C). b

330. This method of execution violaies contemporary standards of human decency, as is
reflectad by the fact that it remains an option caly in Utah and [daho.

331, Use of the firing squad is an unconstitutionz] method of execution without any procedural
safepuards to prevent prolonged and intense pain and suffenng.

332, Mr. Cummings’ Staternent of Arguments and Authorities in Support of this Application
are sel farth in Addendum A, which 15 incorporated herein by reference.
XI. LT : L YTOLATIM

] iTE A DEMIAL O
M INDARMENTAT FAIRN .

333, The cumulative effect of the errars in all pricr proceedings have deprived Mr. Cummings
a fundamentally fair imial 2nd a fair and reliable sentencing determination in vialation of his rights uoder

the Fifth, Sixth, Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution and Article 2, §§2,

- 708 10, 19, 20, 21 of the Oklahema Constitution and the laws of the State of Oklshoma. 1f Mr

Cummings had not been denized his constitutional and substantive nights, there 15 a rezsonzhle prababilicy
that the outcomme of prior proceedings, including both pheses of his trai and his pending dirsct appeal,
would have been difTerent.

Facts in Support.

334, Al other claims, facts and 2llegations in this Application, andfor his pending direct appzal,
are realleped and incorporated by reference in this proposition as the factual basis for this claim, as well
as the information in the Appendix and information to be produced at 2n evidentiary hearing on this

Application,
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135. At the guilt stage of Mr, Cummings’ trial, the jury was exposed to uncomaberated and

unreliable allegations shout Mclissa having been sexually abused. Although the evidence in suppost of
those allegations was so lacking in substance {hat the trigl court dismissed Count 111 nt_]:ha conclusiamn
of the evidence (T, 853), the jurors wete not instructed to disregard Anita’s unsuppaorted testimony about
the alleged child sexual abuse, nor were they instructed that they could not consider Anita’s estimony
p:g;rﬂing that sexual abuse unless they found it to be sufficlently corrabarated. Not only was Anita’s
testimony uncorraborated, it was contradicted by Shemy’s testimeny. Additicnal, the alleged rape was
something Anita came up long afier she was arrested and had given many other statements that did not
mention it. Tn addition, the prosecution specifically asked jurors duning closing arpuments to sentence
Mr. Cummings' to death based on his claim that Melissa had been raped. In addition, jurors were
exposed o Anita's sclf-serving claim, that she came up with manths after her arrest, that Mr.
Cummings’ had whispered in her car during sex a confession on haw Melissa was killed, which 15 wotally
inconsistent with her previous staterments in which she said he had never indicated to her what had
happencd to Melissa (Appendix 12, p. 34).

136, Jurors were also asked to-find Mr. Cummings guilty based on the Slate’s theory that Ania
and Sherry were battered women, without any eorrobaration for such a claim in terms of medical
testimony, palice reports, expert testimony, documented bruizes and injuries, or the testimany of anyane
who saw or heard any abuse or injuries. While jurcrs are familiar with the concept of Bartersd Women
Syndrome, they lack the skills to diagnosis it. Hence, it was pure speculation that the women were
Lattered women wha lost the will te resist 2 command to kifl. That speculation was the shaky basis on
which the prosecution asked jurars ta infer that these women would nat commit these killings unless
cammanded to do s0, and hence infer that Mr. Cummings, who had no motive for wanting the victims
killed, must have commanded the women to kill. The insufficiency of the evidence, coupled with all
of the errors et forth in this application, destrays confidence in the reliability of Mr. Cummings’
convictions.

137, The sentencing stage also was tainted by the spill-over effect of the crors and flaws from

the muilt phase, and was further cormupted by the defects in that proceeding, not the jeast of which was
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defense counsel conceding Mr. Curmmings’ guilt to bath homicides and both of the alleged rapes, despile

the fact that Mr. Cumnmings never admitied his guill to his counsel and never consented to such
a:ﬂmissinns of guilt. Under the tetaliry of the circumstances, it is not possible o say that Mr. Commings’
centences were not the result of passion, prejudice, inadmissable and unreliable evidence, and other
arbitrary factors.

13%. Petitianer's Statement of Arguments and Authorities in Support of this Application 1% set

forth in Addendum A, which is incorparated herein by reference.

REQUEST FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, for the foregoing reasans and such others a8 may appear to this tuur[ ar be
adduced at the evidentiary hearing in this case, Petitionet respectfully requests thiz Court 1o:

{a} Require Respondent to file a response @ this Application, pursuant to 22 0.5, §1083,

specifically admitting or denying the factual allegations of this Application,

{b) Permit Petitioner by counsel to file a reply to Respondent’s response, responding lo any

affirmative defenses raised by the response;

{c) Permit Petitioner to ubilize the processes of discovery set forth in 12 0.5, 1989, §3224-1, o

the extent necessary ta fully develop and identify the facts supporting this Application and any

defenses raised by Respondent’s Fespanse;

{d} Remand this case for an evidentiary heaning, after appropriate discovery, to resoive any

factual disputes raised by Respondent’s response 1o thiz Application, or by Petitioner's reply to

amy affirmative defenses raised by Respendent;

() Permit Petitioner a period of 90 days within which to supplemnent this Application with

afdavits and other materials not available to Petitioner at the time this Application was filed;

{F} Permit Petitioner to amend this Application 2t any time priot to cntry of judzment, to include

any additional allegations, claims and/or material facts not presently available to him or his

counse] and which became available through investigation, discovery and procecdings on this

Application;
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() Creder that Petitioner’s pending Direct Appeal be deemed amended to include all of the
allepations, claims and facts in this Application, including the information in the Addenda and
Appendices and information to be produced at an evidentiary hearing on this Application;

(h) Vacate and set aside the judgment and sentence in this case and remand this case for further
praceedings, ar medify his death sentences to sentences less than death;

(T) Order Respondent to release Petitioner fram custody, wnless he i3 given 2 new fmal, or new
proceedings are conducted to cure constitutional defects in the mial-court proceedings which
resulted in Petitioner’s present convictions and sentences; and :

(i) Grant Petitioner such further and additional relicf as may be just and equitable.

Respectfilly submitted,

adueTCBA #17482)
T Pate (O 13084)
2l AHOMA [INDIGENT DEFENSE SYETEM
1623 Cross Center Drive
Normman, O 73018
Phene; 405/364-6204
Fax: 405447-2293

COUNSEL FOR ME. CUMMINGS

CERTIEICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on April 28, 1998, a true and correct copy of Mr. Cummings’ foregoing
Verified Original Application for Post-Conviction Relief, with all Addenda and Appendices
attached, was delivered to the Office of the Clerk of the Court to be delivered to the Office of the
Attorney General; and all parties required to be served have been served.

7 14dith G, Menadue
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